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Chairman’s Statement

EE: 8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Director”) of Perfect Group International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure to present to
you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Business Outlook and Future Prospects

The Group is one of the top fine jewellery manufacturers
and wholesalers with approximately 30 years of history in
Hong Kong. The Group positions its products to target the
high-end segment of the fine jewellery market by average
wholesale price and engaged in designing, manufacturing
and sales of high-end fine jewellery (primarily mounted with
diamonds) (“Jewellery Business”) and in 2017 engaged
in development and sales of properties for the Group’s
integrated and comprehensive industry park located at 1st
Ring Road South Extension Foshan, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (“Property Development”) with the development
plan to build an integrated and comprehensive industry park

(the “Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park”).

Jewellery Business

In the first half of the year 2018, Jewellery Business has
stabilized with a slight improvement compared with
the corresponding period of last year. However, during
the second half of the year 2018, the Group, although
maintained a relatively stable sales in the Hong Kong region,
suffered from the weak buying behavior of customers in the
Dubai region. The Group considered that the drop in the
sales in the Dubai region was mainly due to the challenges
from macroeconomic issues such as uncertain oil prices, as
well as trade tensions between US and the PRC and in other
regions, and currency volatility in many emerging markets.
In response to this economic climate, the Group has been
looking for opportunities to explore or expand new markets,
such as the cooperation with or joint investment with other

business partners in the PRC.
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Property Development

The construction work for the Perfect Group Jewellery
Industry Park is progressing as scheduled. In January 2018,
the Group held the topping-up ceremony for the Perfect
Tower, the head-quarter of the Group in the PRC, inside
the Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park. The relocation
process of the production facilities to Perfect Group
Jewellery Park was completed in June 2018 as scheduled.
The construction work for Perfect Expo, the exhibition
building inside the Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park,
The Group has held the

3rd Shunde International Jewellery and Gem Fair in the

was also completed in 2018.

Perfect Expo in November 2018 and received overwhelming
response from customers and other business parties in this
fair. In future, the Group intends to utilize the Perfect Expo
as the sales and marketing channel of the Group’s jewellery
products and by way of further shows and exhibitions in the
Perfect Expo to promote the sales of the jewellery products

of the Group.

A significant portion of the Perfect Group Jewellery
Industry Park has been completed. The Group received
overwhelming response from the buyers and almost all of
the factory units in Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park
which the Group intended for sale have been sold. In 2018,
the Group has delivered part of the completed portion of
Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park to the buyers. The
Group expects that almost all of the construction work of
the Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park will be completed
in 2019 and further sales and delivery of the completed
units to buyers will be made in 2019. The leasing of certain
part of the Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park has started
at the end of the year 2018. Approximately HK$0.03
million has been recorded during the year 2018 and the
Group expects more rental income will be recorded as the
development of Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park has

completed.

Chairman’s Statement

N F: 8

LU XY

TRES TR b D A B R TR B AT b o R
2018%F1H » AL A REHREEE DL RNZ MR
BEAE KB (RP A4 [ v [ 2 A8 ) ERAT T TE AR
X AERMEIRE R RBBREEE PO ZMER
FFEHE R B 201846 H 58 AL o 175 155 i (E £
BHREEEPLOANZRE LM 2HEELETLERD
TR20184F 58 A o A% 4 [ 7420184 11 7 16 £7 ¥ 18 58
i B A 58 = Joeh 72 O R R A KR B
T B HAEH 7 i) BEIT 5 - M H & > AR
o0 5 P AR BT S AR S AN SR BRI B
T8 G SR - NI A 7 (R R e — 2D B
Ha R E, UMOEAREEREE MW E -

TRESTRE E D ERIBM AL SER o AL M
157 5 65 1) DR B T 2 3 PO 1 T L6 0 L R
FURBIE > AR E & H o R20184F » AR M
L 0 9 PR % B B 2 b i 2 R R A 3 A T
BE - ALBEMREFREEEDONET 2T
A TR A 20194 52 15 - A AF A 20194F ] B K
B R BT A - RBIREEEF
D Z AT 2201 84F i BA s 3 A » 72201 84F
W 2 8% 13 £930,0000 7C o b 25 R 85 PR H = 26 h
OZEREHR LT > AEEEHE RS EZHAE
A o

2018 Annual Report 4F 9



Chairman’s Statement

N F: e

The Group has signed property management contracts with ALECEAEFETYREEMESH > WEHE A
occupants and started providing management services to 15 55 2 AL A8 TR 5 o A B2 I T LU R R 2l 4 2
them. The Group expects this will generate stable income T A B B AR AR AR WA -

for the Group in the coming years.

Appreciation Bl

I would like to express heartfelt gratitude to my fellow ANFLBHEFR - AEHSHEHRANR K
directors, senior management and employees of the Group BTH-FETAE WK EFAEERFEME
for their diligence, and sincerely thank our shareholders, P SZ R AEAT R R o

business partners and customers for their support and trust.

Kan Kin Kwong FE
Chairman 2 18
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019 e > 20194E3 22 H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The principal business of the Group is designing,
manufacturing and sales of high-end fine jewellery
(primarily mounted with diamonds) (“Jewellery Business”)
and the development and sales of properties for the Group’s
integrated and comprehensive industry park located at 1st
Ring Road South Extension Foshan, Guangdong Province,
the PRC (“Property Development”) with the development
plan to build an integrated and comprehensive industry park
(the “Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$522.0 million (2017: HK$352.0
million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$170.0 million or 48.3% over the corresponding year
of 2017. The increase in the Group’s revenue was primarily
due to the recognition of revenue from sale of properties in
the PRC which was partly offset by the decrease in revenue
from Jewelery Business during the year.

The revenue of Jewellery Business and Property
Development business represents approximately 60.2% and
39.8% respectively of total revenue.

Jewellery Business

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for Jewellery Business during the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$314.3
million (2017: HK$352.0 million), representing a decrease
of approximately HK$37.7 million or 10.7% over the
corresponding year of 2017. The decrease in the Group’s
revenue was primarily due to the decrease in sales of
jewellery products in Dubai region in the second half of the

year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B P et ik i % 73

The sales to Hong Kong was maintained at approximately
HK$208.7 million (2017: HK$208.6 million). However,
the sales to Dubai region decreased from approximately
HK$142.3 million to approximately HK$103.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$38.5 million
or 27.1%. The sales to the PRC, which was still on an
exploring stage, was approximately HK$1.7 million (2017:
HK$1.1 million), an increase of approximately HK$0.6

million or 54.5%.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit decreased from approximately HK$110.2
million to HK$80.0 million, representing an decrease of
approximately HK$30.2 million or 27.4% which is in line
with the sales of Jewellery Business. The gross profit margin
was approximately 25.5% which was at a similar level
comparing with last year (2017: 26.7%), the gross profit
margin after excluding the reversal of the provision on the
staff benefits.

Property Development

Revenue and Gross Profit

Revenue of approximately HK$207.7 million (2017: Nil)
was recorded for the year for the Property Development.
The revenue from Property Development was recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the respective properties. The gross profits recognised for
the year was approximately HK$88.0 million which was
approximately 42.4%.

Overall Gross profit and gross profit margin

Overall gross profit increased from approximately
HK$110.2 million to approximately HK$168.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$57.8 million
or 52.5%. Included in the gross profit, approximately
HK$80.0 million related to Jewellery Business, representing
an decrease of approximately HK$30.2 million or 27.4%,
and approximately HK$88.0 million related to Property

Development business.
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Other income

Other income increased from approximately HK$1.3
million to HK$2.6 million, an increase of approximately
HK$1.3 million or 107.1%. The increase mainly comprised
of scrap sales of approximately HK$0.3 million (2017:
HK$0.7 million) and interest income of approximately
HK$1.9 million (2017: HK$ 0.3 million) derived from the
deposits placed with the banks.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses include the write-off of plant and
equipment of approximately HK$0.9 million (2017: Nil)
as a result of transfer of Dongguan factory to Perfect
Group Jewellery Industry Park during the year and the
impairment loss recognised on trade receivables amounting
to approximately HK$0.8 million (2017: Reversal of
allowances for doubtful debts of approximately HK$1.1

million).

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$3.8 million during the
year related to interests on the bank loans for the operation
of the jewellery manufacturing and on the construction of

the property development.

Selling and distribution costs

The decrease in selling and distribution costs of
approximately HK$15.4 million to approximately HK$14.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.5
million or 3.2% was mainly due to the decrease of delivery

charges during the year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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General and administrative expenses

The increase in general and administrative expenses from
approximately HK$42.2 million to approximately HK$48.8
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$6.6
million or 15.6% was mainly due to severance payment
amounting to approximately HK$5.3 million. The severance
payment was related to the transfer of Dongguan factory
to Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park during the year
(2017: Nil).

Profit for the year

As a result of the above factors, profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$71.6 million
(2017: HK$48.1 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$23.5 million or approximately 48.9%.

Financial position
Non-current Assets

Among the HK$131.1 million (2017: HK$29.0 million) of
property, plant and equipment, approximately HK$127.4
million (2017: HK$23.5 million) were construction in
progress, approximately HK$2.3 million (2017: HK$3.7
million) was furniture and fixtures. The remaining balance
of approximately HK$1.4 million (2017: HK$1.8 million)

were plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

The Group has also changed the use of certain property of
approximately HK$9.6 million (2017: Nil) to investment

properties and leased them to independent third parties.

Prepaid lease payments were leasehold land in the PRC
approximately HK$14.9 million (2017: HK$16.9 million)
was classified as non-current assets and approximately
HK$0.3 million (2017: HK$0.4 million) was classified as

current assets.
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Current assets

Current assets increased to approximately to HK$908.2
million (2017: HK$536.8 million). This was mainly due
to increase in the Properties under development for sales
and Properties held for sale of approximately HK$257.4
million (2017: HK$186.4 million) and approximately
HK$122.0 million (2017: NIL) respectively. Inventory
of approximately HK$167.0 million (2017: HK$180.0
million) mainly comprised of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods, similar to last year. Bank
balances and cash also increased to approximately
HK$218.1 million (2017: HK$59.5 million) because of
money received from sales of properties in Perfect Group

Jewellery Industry Park.

As at 31 December 2018, there was an increase in trade

receivables mainly due to sales of properties in PRC.

Moreover, there was an increase in other receivables,
prepayment and deposits from approximately HK$22.4
million to approximately HK$38.5 million. This was mainly
due to increase in prepayment of VAT in relation to sale of
properties in PRC from approximately HK$8.1 million to
approximately HK$24.9 million.

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables amounting to approximately
HK$110.0 million (2017: HK$29.1 million) comprised of
trade payable of approximately HK$102.6 million (2017:
HK$15.2 million) and accrual and other payables of
approximately HK$7.4 million (2017: HK$13.9 million).
Accrual and other payables mainly consists of payable
of staff salaries and benefits and provision for certain
construction obligations. As at 31 December 2018, trade
payables increased from approximately HK$15.2 million
to approximately HK$102.6 million mainly due to the
construction cost payables of approximately HK$79.0
million to contractors for the properties in Perfect Group

Jewellery Industry Park.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The contract liabilities, which are the deposit received
from the customers of properties in the PRC, amounted to
approximately HK$214.3 million (2017 : NIL).

Share Capital

Pursuant to a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 12 September 2017, every one
issued and unissued existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company was subdivided
into three subdivided shares of one-third Hong Kong
cent each which became effective on 13 September 2017.
As a result, the issued capital of the Company has been
changed from 450,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each to
1,350,000,000 shares of one-third Hong Kong cent each.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets
of approximately HK$908.2 million (2017: HK$536.8
million) and current liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$363.6 million (2017: HK$64.6 million). Accordingly,
the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current
liabilities, was approximately 2.5 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: 8.3).

Gearing ratio

Based on total borrowings divided by equity, the gearing
ratio was approximately 28.1% (2017: 4.9%).

Foreign exchange exposure

During the year, certain group entities have foreign currency
denominated sales and purchases; and monetary assets and
liabilities which expose the Group to foreign currency risks
on the currencies of HKD, USD, RMB, and AED. The sales
are primarily made in USD while the expenses, including
purchase of raw materials are mainly in USD and HKD with
immaterial portion of cost, primarily being staff cost and

factory overheads, in RMB.
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Despite the expenses are mainly settled in HKD and
USD and substantial portion of the sales and expenses are
made in either USD or HKD, with HKD and AED being
pegged with the USD, the impact of fluctuation of USD
to the operational and financial performance would be
immaterial, hence the Group’s exposure to currency risk is

not significant.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn

out to be material in the future.

Business and Financial Risks

(i) The profitability and financial position may be
materially and adversely affected if any of our major

customers ceases their business relationship with us;

(i) The business and financial position may be materially
and adversely affected if there is a global economic
downturn, in particular, in the Middle East market;

and

(iii) We are susceptible to material and adverse change in
the Hong Kong tax laws or unfavourable interpretation
regarding apportionment claim of profits in cross-

border processing business.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets and liabilities, mainly interest-bearing bank balances
and bank borrowings (see note 25 for details) at variable
interest rates. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management will consider

hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.
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Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures

to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

debts.

Charge on assets

There was charge on the Group’s assets as at 31 December
2018 amounting to approximately HK$152.1 million
(2017: Nil).

Dividend policy

The Board intends to create long term value for the
shareholders of the Company through maintaining a
balance between dividend distribution, adequate cash flow
and reserve to meet its working capital requirement and
capturing growth opportunities. The Board may propose or
declare the payment of dividends after taking into account
the current financial performance, the future financial
requirements and any other factors that may deem relevant
to the Company. The Board may decide the frequency of
dividend payment and further declare or recommend any
special distributions. Dividends may be declared or paid
by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. The payment of dividend is also
subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations
including the laws of Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association. The Board will
review this dividend policy from time to time and there can
be no assurance that dividend will be paid in any particular

amount for any given period.
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Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of the property, plant and
equipment and properties under development for sale
contracted but not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately HK$380.9 million

(2017: HK437.3 million).

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Employee and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately
118 employees (2017: 267 employees) in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The total salaries and related costs for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$37.1 million (2017: HK$30.0 million after reversal on
staff benefits for previous years amounting to approximately

HK$16.3 million).

The Group offered competitive remuneration package as
an incentive to staff to improve the work performance. The
Company has share option scheme in place as a means to
encourage and reward the eligible employees’ (including the
Directors of the Company) contributions to the Group’s
performance and business development based on their
individual performance. The employees’ remuneration,
promotion and salary are assessed by reference to their
work performance, working experiences, professional

qualifications and the prevailing market practice.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Use of proceeds from the global offering A BR 98B B B 1 K JE L&

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had utilised 12018412731 H » AN R E B 2R EE 2 T
approximately HK$73.8 million of net proceeds from the T4 3K TH 13 #1149 73,800,0009 7T o A B BT A5 3 TH 3 4
global offering. The latest revised allocation of the net Z AT BE B 2018412 4 31 H i A% 3K H 1 48 2
proceeds and the utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 BHAEH I W

December 2018 are set out below:

Utilisation
Latest as at
revised 31 December Remaining
Uses iz allocation 2018 balance
20184
12H31H 2
I5c B BEAE BT 43 L B ] 4% Bl R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THTT THIo Tt
Expanding the Middle East and 3% 78 R R M
European high-end markets 15 i 117 35 7,700 7,700 —
Upgrading the existing production THRBUA A R
facilities and hiring and training DL R B
additional labour Al R T 1,839 1,839 -
Brand development il T i 16,837 16,837 =
Enhancing the CRM system ’IEF BIR
B R 3,597 878 2,719
Additional working capital and HHONE A S Ho A
other general corporate purposes — A E M A 2,220 2,220 -
Establishing the headquarter in the PRC 4 H [ i 37 A2 78 &
and developing the PRC market B 5% o B T 3 44,340 44,340 =
Total st 76,533 73,814 2,719
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The business objectives, future plans and planned use of
proceeds as stated in the prospectus dated 22 December
2015 (the “Prospectus”) were based on the best estimation
and assumption of future market conditions made by the
Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus. The uses
of proceeds were applied in accordance with the actual
development of the market. As of the date of this report,
the Directors are not aware of material change to the
planned use of the proceeds from the plan as stated in the
announcement dated 28 November 2016. The Directors
will constantly evaluate the Group’s business objective and
will change or modify plans against the changing market

condition to ascertain the business growth of the Group.

All the unutilised balances have been placed in licensed

banks in Hong Kong.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong, aged 59, was appointed as the
Director in June 2015 and was appointed as the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer, and designated
as the executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Kan is the
founder of the Group and was appointed as a director of
HK Perfect in October 1986. Mr. Kan is also the director
of Perfect (BVI) and Perfect Group HK, the wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Mr. Kan is mainly responsible for managing the
overall operations of the Group and planning our business
development and strategies, in particular, overseeing the
business activities of the Group, supervising the operations
and resources allocation of the Group and driving the

Group to attain performance targets.

Mr. Kan has over 30 years of experience in the fine jewellery
industry. Currently, Mr. Kan is the president of the Hong
Kong Gold and Silver Ornament Workers & Merchants
General Union, the honorary president of the Hong
Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association and the 20th
honorary president of the Hong Kong Jade Association,
Mr. Kan was also awarded “2017 Honorary Fellows” by
the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business
Sector on 13 July, 2017, in recognition of his contribution

to the local jewellery industry.

Ms. Shek Mei Chun, aged 54, the wife of Mr. Kan, was
appointed as the executive Director in August 2015. Mrs.
Kan was appointed as a director of HK Perfect in March
1990. Mrs. Kan is mainly responsible for managing the
sales operations of the Group, in particular, overseeing the
sales activities of the Group, leading the sales team to attain
sales targets and devising sales plans based on the varying

demands and customer behaviour in different markets.

Ms. Shek has over 25 years of experience in the fine

jewellery industry.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chung Chi Keung, aged 57, was appointed as the
executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Chung joined HK
Perfect as an accountant in March 1990. Mr. Chung was
appointed as a director of HK Perfect in November 2006.

Mr. Chung was awarded a higher stage certificate for
proficiency in accounting and a certificate of proficiency
in cost accounting, both issued by the London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry in 1982 and 1985 respectively.
Mr. Chung also passed the intermediate examination of
the Association of Accounting Technicians in December
1991. Mr. Chung has over 30 years of experience in the

accounting industry.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Chor Ho, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 77, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Fan currently also acts as a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Fan has been an independent
non-executive director of Hong Kong International Construction
Investment Management Group Co., Limited (Formerly known as
Tysan Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
stock code: 687), since August 1993 and is currently the chairman
of the audit committee, a memeber of remuneration committee
and a member of the nomination committee of such company.
He was a non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited from 3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a
member of the Advisory Committee to the Securities and Futures
Commission from 1993 to 1997 and again serving in the same
capacity since 2001 until 2007. He was holding appointments on
Government boards and committees, including chairman of the
Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong from 13 September
2005 to 12 September 2011. He was awarded the Badge of
Honour in 1991 and was made a Justice of the Peace in 1993,
and was awarded Bronze Bauhinia Star in July 2005 and the Silver
Bauhinia Star in July 2011.
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Mr. Li Cheuk Wai, aged 48, was appointed as the

independent non-executive Director in December 2015.

Mr. Li received a bachelor’s degree in social science from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong May 1995 and a
bachelor’s degree in laws from the University of London in
August 2000. Mr. Li obtained the postgraduate certificate in
laws issued by the University of Hong Kong in June 2001.
Mr. Li was admitted a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong in September 2003.

From June 2014 to November 2014, Mr. Li was an
independent non-executive director of China Financial
Leasing Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2312).

Currently, Mr. Li is the senior partner of Li & Lai, a firm of

solicitors in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick, aged 63, was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director in December
2015.

Mr. Wong received a master’s degree in electronic commerce
from Edith Cowan University in Western Australia in
February 2002. Mr. Wong has been a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June
1991 and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since December 1993.
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Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
finance, audit, tax and corporate finance with an
international certified public accountant firm and listed
companies in the United Kingdom, New Zealand, Hong
Kong and Thailand. From April 1996 to March 1999, Mr.
Wong was an executive director of Hwa Kay Thai Holdings
Limited (currently known as China Solar Energy Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 155). From January 2001 to January 2011, Mr.
Wong was the chief financial officer and company secretary
of CIGYangtze Ports PLC, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1719 (since 29 January 2018)),
and has been an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of such company since April
2014 and the chairman of the nomination committee of
such company since October 2015. Mr. Wong had been the
chief financial officer of APAC Resources Limited (stock
code: 1104), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since
January 2011 and also acted as the company secretary of
the company between April 2011 and December 2011 and
since February 2013 until he resigned from such positions
in July 2016 and served as a consultant to the company
between August 2016 to October 2016. Mr. Wong had been
the chief financial officer of Asia Investment Finance Group
Limited (stock code: 0033), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 18 September 2017 and also acted as the
company secretary and authorized representative of such
company since 25 September 2017 until he resigned from
such positions on 3 November 2017. Mr. Wong has been
an independent non-executive director, chairman of the
audit committee and the risk management committee and
member of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of Wah Sun Handbags International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2683), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 22 January 2018 and an executive director
of Changfeng Energy Inc., a company listed on the Toronto
Venture Exchange (TSXV) (stock code: CFY), since 22
February 2019.
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Senior Management Personnel

Other than the Directors, the senior management team
together with the executive Directors, are responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group. The following
table sets forth certain information in respect of our senior

management personnel:

RBEHAR

AR 0 41 2540 A G LA 8 55 4 40
[ P AR SBEAT o A B B A S
#F R

Date of

appointment as

Date of joining HK senior management
Name Age  Perfect/the Group Present Position personnel Key role and responsibility
R K BRI
2 FE KB H B i Bk EYNCLELER EREM R
Mr. Tam Chun Wa 55 7 February 2017 Chief financial officer and 7 February 2017 Responsible for financial reporting
N 201742178 company secretary 20174F2H7H and compliance
B ERAANE BB R B

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 55, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017. Mr. Tam is mainly responsible for
financial reporting and compliance. Mr. Tam Chun Wa,
holds a master degree of business administration from
University of Sydney and is also a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA (Australia)
and Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants. Mr.
Tam has more than 20 years of experience in the areas of
auditing, accounting, tax, investment banking and company
secretarial works. Mr. Tam is an independent non-executive
Director of Green Energy Group Limited, being a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 979.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 to all
Shareholders.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 and the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated

financial statements from pages 79 to 81.

Final dividend

The Group has declared an interim dividend of HK$0.01
per share on 21 September 2018 (2017: HK$0.01). The
Directors recommend the payment for final dividend of
HK$0.01 per share and a special dividend of HK$0.02
per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 for the
recognition of the profit on the Property Development.

Report of the Directors
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Closure of Register of Members

In order to establish the identity of the shareholders who are
entitled to the proposed final dividend, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-
04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s
Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:00 p.m.
on Monday, 3 June 2019. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 4 June 2019 to
Thursday, 6 June 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. Subject to the
approval by the shareholders on the proposed final dividend
at the annual general meeting to be held on Monday,
27 May 2019, the final dividend and special dividend
will be paid on or around Tuesday, 18 June 2019 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members

of the Company on Thursday, 6 June 2019.

Business review

Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance requires companies
to include a business review in the directors’ report.
Specifically, the Companies Ordinance requires a business
review to cover a number of areas which are also approved
by the board of directors and included in this report as
follows:

1. A fair review of the Group’s business
Pages 11 to 16 of this report

2. Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
Pages 16 and 17 of this report

3. Important events after the reporting date affecting the
Group Page 18 of this report

4. Indication of likely development of the Group
Pages 8 to 10 of this report
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Segment Information

The executive Directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue analysis
from the sales and manufacturing of Jewellery products,
including rings, earrings, pendants, bangles, necklaces and
bracelets, and by location of delivery to customers and
development and sales of properties. The executive Directors
considered there were two operating activities which
were manufacturing and sales of jewellery products and
development and sales of properties. The operating segment
has been identified on the basis of internal management
reports prepared in accordance with accounting policies
conform to HKFRSs, and is regularly reviewed by the
executive Directors. The executive Directors review the
overall results, assets and liabilities of the Group as a whole
to make decisions about resources allocation. Accordingly,
two analysis of this operating segments are presented.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
200 of this report. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 82 to page 83 and in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had a reserve
of approximately HK$427,101,000 (2017: reserve of
approximately HK$396,487,000) in its distributable
reserves, calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands.
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Major customers and suppliers

Sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 6.1%
and 26.6% of the Group’s total revenue for the year,
respectively. The purchases made by the Group from its
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 69.1% and 96.5% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors, their close associates, nor any shareholders who
owned more than five percent of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers during the year.

Subsidiaries

The details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Directors and directors’ services contracts
The Directors who hold office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Shek Mei Chun
Mr. Chung Chi Keung

Non-executive Director
Mr. He Dingding (appointed on 1 March 2017,
He resigned as non-executive director on 1 March 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick
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Each of the executive Directors has renewed a services
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 4 January 2019, which may be
terminated by, not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to
termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement
by rotation of the Directors as set forth in the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has renewed a letter of appointment
or a service agreement with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from 4 January 2019 or the date
of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting set forth in the Articles
of Association and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the listing of securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) and all of them are considered to be
independent.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third
of the existing Directors shall retire from office, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Chung Chi
Keung, and Mr. Fan Chor Ho will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors and Supervisors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made

by the Company).
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Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure from the business of the

Group.

Directors’ interest in contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest subsisted at the year ended 31
December 2018 or at any time during the year.

Continuing connected transactions

On 3 August 2018, Perfect Group HK renewed the existing
tenancy agreement (the “Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement”)
with HK Perfect, pursuant to which Perfect Group HK
continues to lease premises from HK Perfect for a term
of three years commencing on 5 August 2018 for the
purpose of the Group’s offices in Hong Kong. The terms
of the renewed tenancy are similar the expired agreement
except that the rent has been increased from monthly rent
of HK$290,000 to monthly rent of HK$350,000. The
transactions contemplated under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Aggregate amount for
the financial year ended
31 December 2018
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Annual Cap amount

the financial year ended

31 December 2017

#, 2201741231 H 1k
YA AR JE 2 AR R BB

Lease of premises from Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery
Company Limited (Note)
le] O 8% B 85 A7 BR 2> mAE ) BT (B RE)

Note: Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Company Limited is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. It is an associate
of Mr. Kan Kin Kwong, a controlling shareholder,
an executive Director, and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that:

(1) the terms of New Tenancy Agreement are on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole;

(2)  the proposed annual caps are fair and reasonable; and

(3) the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the New Tenancy Agreement are and will
be conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

According to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Biographies of directors and senior management

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 22 to 26 of this report.

Controlling shareholders’ interest in contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, there was no contract
of significance to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any of the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Non-competition undertaking by controlling

shareholders

Each of the controlling sharcholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of
non-competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Company dated 22 December 2015
(the “Prospectus”).

Non-competition undertaking by executive
directors

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the executive
Directors have become effective from the Listing Date.

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of
non-competition undertaking from the Listing Date to the
date of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors have complied with
the non-competition undertaking and the non-competition
undertaking for the period set forth in the paragraph above
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its
terms.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Share option scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Disclosure of interests

Interests of Directors and chief executive
officers

As of the date of this report, the Directors and the chief
executive officer of the Company had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company, its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO?”))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.

Ordinary shares of one-third Hong Kong cent each of the
Company

Name of Director/

chief executive officers

Capacity/nature of interest
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Number of shares
(Long Position)

Approximately
percentage of
shareholdings in
the Company

Al A< 2 w6 B HE 1)
e TN T 5 W 1 e 8 H A7) 20 i 2 e
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr. Kan”) Interest of controlled 886,959,000 shares (note 1) 66.44%
oA (Tf et ) ~_corporation 886,959,000/8% (B 1)
2 Y i 3 I AE 4R
Beneficial owner 7,320,000 shares
HiBEa A 7,320,000 8%
Beneficial owner 1,350,000 shares (note 3)
HaBEa A 1,350,000/8 (Fff5£3)
Interest of spouse 1,260,000 shares
i £ 4 25 (note 4)
1,260,000/8 (Fft 5:4)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung Interest of controlled 30,375,000 shares (note 2) 2.34%
(“Mr. Chung”) ~_corporation 30,375,000/% (Fff5E2)
s e ([#EEE ] 2 FE il 5 [ R A
Beneficial owner 1,260,000 shares (note 3)
- E°E XN 1,260,000 % (Fft 5£3)
Ms. Shek Mei Chun (“Ms. Shek”) Interest of spouse 895,629,000 shares (note 5) 66.44%

AaxBr L ((axt))

T, {1 HEE i

Beneficial owner

HamoEA A

895,629,000/1% (B 5£5)

1,260,000 shares (note 3)
1,260,000 % (Fft 5£3)
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Approximately
percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of shares shareholdings in
chief executive officers Capacity/nature of interest (Long Position) the Company
A A 2 i Jie HE #
S FESBRABEA 2704 -8:3 Bt B H (4 A7) LR ONER i
Mr. Fan Chor Ho Beneficial owner 900,000 shares‘(note 3) 0.07%
LR e gt ZPN 900,000/ (Ff7%3)
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai Beneficial owner 180,000 shares
Ly W Ha A A 180,000/
Beneficial owner 900,000 shares (note 3) 0.08%
H A A A 900,000/ (Fff 5E3)
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick Beneficial owner 900,000 shares (note 3) 0.07%
B S gt ZPN 900,000/ (Kff5E3)

Notes: R 5T -

1.  Among these 886,959,000 shares, 729,000,000 shares, 1. % 55886,959,000/% I 3 5 =1 729,000,000/ -
57,339,000 sharers and 100,620,000 shares are held by 57,339,000% 100,620,000/ 43 Al Hi Immaculate
Immaculate Diamonds Limited, King Jewel Limited and Diamonds Limited * King Jewel Limited & Classic
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited, respectively. The entire Sapphire Holdings Limitedff i ° Immaculate
issued capital of Immaculate Diamonds Limited and King Diamonds Limited % King Jewel Limited Z 2 # £ %
Jewel Limited are owned by Mr. Kan. 50% of the issued A7 A o i Y6 42 £ 47 > 1M Classic Sapphire Holdings
capital of Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited are held by Mr. LimitedC) #EAT IR AR Z500% i ff S 2L 1 A < MR 4R
Kan. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is deemed to be interested in itk e K A e ) o f S 2R B % IR Immaculate
all the shares of the Company held by Immaculate Diamonds Diamonds Limited ~ King Jewel Limited & Classic
Limited, King Jewel Limited and Classic Sapphire Holdings Sapphire Holdings Limited i 1 2 4% 23 5] fir A i
Limited. B B AR o

2. These shares are held by Classic Emerald Holdings Limited, 2. #Z5F R0y Classic Emerald Holdings Limited 54
the entire issued capital of which is held by Mr. Chung. AT Z ATRE BAT IR SRR - AR IERE
Under the SFO, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested in all I5 B B R B > 5 S A BB 2% ik Classic Emerald
the shares of the Company held by Classic Emerald Holdings Holdings Limited If - A A 23 5] 2 i A 403 P 3 A
Limited. o

3. These underlying shares represent the shares of the Company 3. B2 5 A B 0 8 AR A B AR PR AR 2 m) 2 W A T
to be issued upon the exercise of the share options granted by B Fa F EATEN B 2 W AT (R T
the Company to the Directors or chief executive pursuant to AT Z A A R o
the share option scheme of the Company.

4. Mr. Kan and Ms. Shek are spouses. Under the SFO, Mr. 4. il S A B Lo L TE A R AR - AR IR 25 S 1 & 1
Kan is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company 18] > ] 510 A AR B A AR A R T A et 2 B IR
which may be issued upon the exercise of the share options AT W] T84T Z A w0y A R4 o
granted by the Company to Ms. Shek.

5.  Mr. Kan and Ms. Shek are spouses. Under the SFO, 5. fSeAR B Lk A FLRBIAR o MR IR M Bk

Ms. Shek is deemed to be interested in all the shares of
the Company held by Mr. Kan and all the shares of the

Company in which Mr. Kan is deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their
associates had any other interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required

to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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Substantial shareholders

As to the date of this report, the following persons or

corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive

of the Company disclosed above, had interests or short

positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register of the substantial

shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Ordinary shares of one-third Hong Kong cent each of the

Company
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shareholdings in

Capacity/nature Number of shares the Company
Name of shareholder of interest (Long position) Al A< 2> ] 3 HE 1
I Sk 454 1 By HE 23 PR B E (4 8) B A b
Immaculate Diamonds Limited Beneficial owner 729,000,000 shares 54.00%
Immaculate Diamonds Limited JEETE TN 729,000,000
Richemont Asset Management Limited Beneficial owner 91,460,997 shares 6.77%
Richemont Asset Management Limited JEETE TN 91,460,997 &
Chow Chin Yui Angela Interest of controlled 93,436,782 shares (note 1) 6.92%
JHE /e corporation 93,436,782 1% (K55 1)

2 ) T RE 25
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 100,620,000 shares 7.45%
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited Hau A A 100,620,000/
Chan Wing Sum Interest of a controlled 100,620,000 shares (note 2) 7.45%
B Kk #x corporation 100,620,000/8 (Fff 5E2)

2 W ) T RE 25
Classic Amber Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 101,250,000 shares 7.50%
Classic Amber Holdings Limited Ha A A 101,250,000/
Luo Jacky Interest of a controlled 101,250,000 shares (note 3) 7.50%
A 2R corporation 101,250,000/ (Fff 5%3)

2 v R g
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Notes:

1.  These shares are held by Richemont Asset Management
Limited and Cachet Asset Management Limited, the entire
issued capital of which is held by Ms. Chow Chin Yui
Angela, Under the SFO, Ms. Chow Chin Yui Angela is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company
held by Richemont Asset Management Limited and Cachet
Asset Management Limited.

2. These shares are held by Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited,
50% of the issued capital of which is held by Mr. Chan
Wing Sum. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Sum is deemed
to be interested in all the shares of the Company held by
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited.

3. These shares are held by Classic Amber Holdings Limited,
the entire issued capital of which is held by Mr. Luo Jacky.
Under the SFO, Mr. Luo Jacky is deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company held by Classic Amber
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
by any persons or corporations, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as of the
date of this report.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and
promoted based on their merit, qualifications and

competence.
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The Company adopted the model set out in Code Provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
remuneration model for determining the emoluments of
the Directors. This model stipulates that the remuneration
committee of the Company shall make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The
remuneration committee of the Company would take
into consideration, among other things, the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management
and prevailing market conditions when determining their

remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to provide
incentives to eligible persons, including Directors and

employees of the Group.

Related Party Transactions

Particulars of the Company’s Related Party Transactions are

set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied
with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in relation to these transactions. Continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above. Related party
transactions other than those disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transaction” are fully

exempt connected transactions as defined under the Listing

Rules.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
or the Laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

Report of the Directors
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Purchase, sale or redemption of listing
securities

Neither the Company nor any subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the

Company has maintained sufficient public float.

Corporate governance report

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages

41 to 57 in this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forth coming annual

general meeting of the Company.

Review of Results by Audit Committee

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been reviewed by the audit committee of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Kan Kin Kwong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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The Company strives to attain and maintain a high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Board
attributes a high priority to identifying and implementing
appropriate corporate governance practices to ensure

transparency, accountability and effective internal controls.

Code on corporate governance practices

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. Up the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the code provision under the CG Code,
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code as explained below. The Company will continue
to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate to

the operation and growth of the business of the Group.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The role of the chief executive
officer is performed by Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr. Kan”),
who is also the chairman of the Company. Mr. Kan as
the founder of the Group has extensive experience and
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both chairman of the Company and
chief executive officer of the Company in the same person,
namely Mr. Kan, has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and

efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.

Corporate Governance Report
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in the

securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
is satisfied that the Directors have complied with the Model
Code.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for formulating business strategies
and monitoring the performance of the business of the
Group. Other than the daily operational decisions which
are delegated to the management of the Group, most of the
decisions are taken by the Board. All Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective

functioning.

The Board constituted by six members, including three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors.

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung
Ms. Shek Mei Chun
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick

Biographical details of each Director and relationship
between board members are set out on page 22 to page 26 of

this report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines. One of the independent non-executive
Directors possesses the appropriate professional accounting

qualifications and financial management expertise.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers
covering the costs, losses, expenses and liabilities arising
from the performance of their duties. The insurance policy
covers legal action against its Directors and officers to
comply with the requirement of the Code. During the year,
no claim was made against the Directors and officers of the

Company.

Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ%‘%?ﬁﬁ*

WAL THEE
Y i S
7 5 S
s s

K H P 2B R IE S e B 2 [ B AR R
ARG E22526H o

F WAL IEPATE SRR LW A3 130k 2B

xE?E'” RHAF WAL R E - AN H
8 2 T S BUAT B AT A RO B T LI AR

3.3k MR 5] HARSERZ I8 51 16 S8 1 5
ANt Hp— WU AT EHEAEEEEY
AHEM R B R R -

O R AT R B A

AN B S R AR B R S B A # R
o AR B R PR B o TR 2 A A LR AT IS P 7 AR
A HBK - B LA MESTFRIRE > A
e £ B 106 35 2 o M AR B O P AT B T T
B AL RITE o RAER > AXFHEE L ER
Tk B A Al 2 R AE

2018 Annual Report 4EfEHis 43



Corporate Governance Report

e FiTiEIa

The attendance records of each Director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2018 are set out as follows:

General

meetings

BAEF AN TR F 201841231 H 11 48 B 1
Witz ZwaEz BEREESWT

Attended/Eligible to Attend
e/ £ R
Remuneration Audit Nomination Risk
Board committee  committee  committee management

meetings meetings meetins meetings meeting

Himz #hz  REZ BB

BRAE EHEGE HEGR ROEGR REGR HHER

Executive Directors WiTES

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong et e 11
Mt. Chung Chi Keung AR 11
Ms. Shek Mei Chun F¥B4t /1
Non-executive Directors FRITES

Mr. He Dingding ®? BT T A e 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors BukumEs

Mr. Fan Chor Ho (2 T e o e g ) 11
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai FEBEE 11
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick EIEE 11

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials, and the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), and
has the liberty to seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense if so reasonably required. Directors will
be continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practices.

Notes:

Note 1: appointed on 1 March 2017 and resigned on 1 March
2018 as non-executive director.

Note 2: He was appointed as member of Audit Committee on 1
March 2018.
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414 212 212 1/1 11
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Board Committees

The Board has established four committees, namely
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the risk management committee (the
“Risk Management Committee”). The table below provides
the membership information of these committees on which

certain Board members served:

Corporate Governance Report
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Risk

Audit Nomination Remuneration Management

Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee
g HEMRHET RAZHE VMZH®E EBEHEZEE
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong it S A - C - €
Mr. Chung Chi Keung 8 A5 0 ST R - - M =
Ms. Shek Mei Chun E (B4t - — = M
Mr. He Dingding " BT T 4wy M - - -
Mr. Fan Chor Ho o2 {0 1 e A k) M M = <
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai % 5L M M @ M
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick % i S5 4£ C - M -

Notes: B 5 -

C — Chairman of the relevant Committee

M — Member of the relevant Committee

(note 1) appointed on 1 March 2017 and resigned on 1 March
2018 as non-executive director.

(note 2) appointed as member of Audit Committee on 1 March
2018.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the
Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee have been modelled off the Code Provisions.
Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Li
Cheuk Wai and Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick. Mr.
Wong Wai Keung Frederick is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

—  Consider the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, the audit fee and terms
of engagements, and any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor;

= Review the financial statements and provide material
advice in respect of financial reporting of the Group;

and

—  Opversight of internal control procedures and risk

management of the Group.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held no less than
two times a year. Two meetings of the Audit Committee

were held during the review year.
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Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference with effect from 14 December 2015
and comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Kan
Kin Kwong and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Fan Chor Ho and Mr. Li Cheuk Wai. Mr. Kan

Kin Kwong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The duties of the Nomination Committee shall be:

— Review the structure, size and composition (including
the gender, age, cultural background, education
background, skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company’s corporate strategy;

—  Identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

—  Assess the independency of independent non-executive

Directors;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive; and

—  Review the board diversity policy (including
the gender, age, cultural background, education
background skills, knowledge and experience) as
appropriate and to review the measurable objectives
under the board diversity policy and the progress
of the attainment of the objectives, so as to ensure
effective implementation; and make disclosure of its

review results in the corporate governance report.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held no
less than once a year. One meeting of the Nomination

Committee was held during the review year.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the Company would try
to seek board candidates with Company’s business model
and specific needs, including (but not limited to) gender,
regional and industry experience, skills, knowledge and

educational background.
The Board will review such objectives from time to time to

ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made

towards achieving those objectives.
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Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 14
December 2015 and comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Chung Chi Keung and two independent non-
executive Directors,, namely Mr. Li Cheuk Wai and Mr.
Wong Wai Keung Frederick. Mr. Li Cheuk Wai is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee shall be:

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

- eview and approve the management’s remuneration
R d app th g t
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management;

— Make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

—  Consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

—  Review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

= Review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

—  Ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ%‘%?ﬁ%*

HMEZES

BN Z B & 2201541214 H BLO7 > H— &L
A7 o 5 6 AR 0 S A T 44 B T JE LT HE A
ok R g A AN ZREEA B ZE B
& o

FMZEERMER

- BMALFALAEBEEREHEEA 8GR
e BUR S ZE R > LA Kot il 5T 38 I UK T %
SEIETB B RE R - 1 2 R b ek

— ZBERGNLETHEAE > BRIt
LI 10 I

— U AT S R AR B B I
1] B 2 4@ i ek

— BRI AT EE AN e e R

= BB R TS B ~ B AR
B FAT LA B A 45 1 v At e 57 1 418 A £F 5

— BRI RMELN T ER AR E AR
R B AR LIRS BB AR O 1B > DAREOR AT B
P A A B A0 M L S A R

— At B AT 2 A TR A R G R
W R E L HE U\ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁtﬁ fFaf
B Ak o A R B 5 PR Rl K

- TERBEE S ST MR A GERE BT
BRI 22 BiL 1 5 1A B ) B A -

2018 Annual Report 4EJEHd 49



Corporate Governance Report

e FiTiEIa

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held not B Z B g EEBRIT AR DI —IREE o HE
less than once a year. One meeting of the Remuneration B g [ A B AT T — IR o

Committee was held during the review year.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of CG Code, the R A 26 5 76 <7 HIl 2 57 B SCEEBL LS - B
remuneration of members of senior management by band 2018%F 1231 H IL4FJE > i SR L8 R B 4% 5

for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below: R #  Z F T
Remuneration Band No. of Individuals
i I i N
Nil — HK$1,000,000 01,000,000 7C 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7€ % 1,500,000% 7C =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% JC £2,000,000% JC 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 %5 JC £22,500,000% oC =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7€ % 3,000,000%% JC -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7€ £ 3,500,000% JC =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7€ 24,000,000 7T 1

Risk management committee B EHEE &

The Risk Management Committee was established on 14 JEB A R B E 2R 20154E 12 14 H Moz -
December 2015 and comprises two executive Directors, HBHATEEM R E R A EE L LUK — &R
namely Mr. Kan Kin Kwong and Ms. Shek Mei Chun and S I WUAT HE 5 A e R e AR A R o 8 fa ' S AR 2 TR
one independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li mEMEZEG LW -

Cheuk Wai. Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is the chairman of the

Risk Management Committee.

The duties of the Risk Management Committee shall be JE\ g 7 R 2 B ) TRk TR A S AR N A T S Y o 3%
monitoring the Company’s exposure to sanctions law risks A JE B e AT AR B N SR R Y o HLZE AT
and its implementation of the related internal control

procedures, and shall include:

—  Reviewing and approving all relevant business —  AEE AR B AT AR 52 R R SR ) A R 7
transaction documentation from suppliers or customers HEFESEAEEF (ABB T WA M
or potential customers from any country that is subject B 3605 52 5 SCHE

to sanctions (the “Relevant Counterparty”);

—  Reviewing the information (such as identity and nature —  FRESHNARE T AR ER (s
of business) relating to the Relevant Counterparty to 0 B S P4 ) 3 ) SE 5 32 5 U B i
the contract along with the draft business transaction

documentation;

50  Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 42 ¥l |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 )



—  Checking the Relevant Counterparty against the
various lists of restricted parties and countries
maintained by the United States of America, the
European Union, the United Nations and Australia,
including, without limitation, any government,
individual or entity that is the subject of any United
States Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign
Assets Control-administered sanctions which lists
are publicly available, and determining whether the
Relevant Counterparty is, or is owned or controlled
by, a person located in any country that is subject to

sanctions or a sanctioned person;

—  Reviewing on a semi-annual basis internal control
policies and procedures with respect to sanctions law

matters; and

— If any potential sanctions risk is identified, or
if the Committee considers necessary, retaining
external international legal counsel with necessary
expertise and experience in sanctions law matters for

recommendations and advice.

Meetings of the Risk Management Committee shall be
held no less than once a year. One meeting of the Risk

Management Committee was held during the review year.

JE B
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Continuous professional development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year, the Group has
provided training materials for all the Directors to keep
them abreast of the latest development of legal, regulatory
and corporate governance. The Group, together with its
compliance adviser, continuously updates the Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

Company secretary

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 55, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017. Mr. Tam Chun Wa, holds a master
degree of business administration from University of Sydney
and is also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA (Australia) and Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants. He has fulfilled the 15
hours of relevant professional training requirement under
the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The Directors aim
to present a clear and understandable assessment of the
Group’s financial position and prospects. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach
in preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside information
announcements and other financial disclosures required by
the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators.
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The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report of this report.

Disclosure of Long Term Basis for Generating
or Preserving Business Value

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s corporate strategy
and long term business model is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of
this report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a stable
and effective risk management and internal control systems
for the Group and also responsible for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Board, with the assistance from the Audit
Committee, conducted annual review on the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
as required by the Code Provisions, covering financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and including reviews on the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial report function for the Period and
considered they were effective and adequate.

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements or
circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way,
which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative

facts.
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Conflicts of Interest Declaration

The Group adopted conflict of interest declaration policy
as one of the important internal control procedures.
Employees are required to provide annual declaration of
conflict of interest, and strictly comply with the policy to
ensure that the Group and its customers, business partners,
shareholders, employees and business community of the
transactions and dealings are in line with the highest

standards of business conduct and ethics.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group established a whistleblowing policy for
employees under confidentiality to file complaint and
report any suspected misconduct, fraud and irregularities,
in an orderly manner. A designated director is assigned for
receiving, reviewing complaint and report, to investigate, to
draw conclusion and to make appropriate recommendations
for improvement, and inform the relevant departments

senior management to implement corrective action.

The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Board engaged Elite Partners Risk Advisory
Services Limited, an independent firm of certified public
accountants, to conduct an independent review of the
systems of internal control of the Group. Weakness and
inadequacies identified during such review together with
recommendations for improvement thereon, had been
accepted and implemented in full by the Company and
reviewed by the Audit Committee. Based on this, the
Company is of the view that the internal control system in
place for the year ended 31 December 2018 is sufficient to
safeguard the interests of the sharcholders and the Group’s

assets.
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Auditor’s remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had
engaged external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, to

provide the following services:

Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ%‘%?ﬁﬁ*

# il T <

R FE 2018412 431 H IR4F > A £ H % ZAT4b
L2 S i 1 480y o TR R O & R AT 4243 1 2 IR

Service Fee

ke 5 £

HKS$

T

Audit services % 8 IR % 1,715,000
Tax advisory o 5 TR 1 85,000
Interim review services rh 3 2 B IR 350,000

Investor relations and communication with

shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good
communication with the shareholders. The Company
believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is the

key to enhance investor relations.

The Company has established several communication
channels, including (a) the annual and extraordinary
general meetings which provide a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board; (b) printed corporate
documents mailing to Shareholders; (c) announcement
disseminating the latest activities of the Group on the
web-sites of the Company and the Stock Exchange; (d)
the Company’s web-site providing an electronic means of

communication.
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Annual General Meeting

The Board and senior management are well aware of their
important tasks of acting on behalf of the interests of all
the Shareholders and raising the Shareholders’ returns. The
Board considers that AGM is an important opportunity for
direct communication with the Shareholders. Code A.6.7 of
the Code Provisions require that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the Shareholders. The Board encourages all the
Shareholders to participate in the AGM where the members
of the Board and external auditors will be present and

communicate with the Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Rights

How Shareholder Can Convene an Extraordinary

General Meeting

In accordance with Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an extraordinary
general meeting. Any one or more Shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up share capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Procedures by which Enquiries may be Put to the
Board

Sharcholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the Board.
Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary
in writing by mail to the Company’s registered office in the
Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands or its
principal place of business in Hong Kong and headquarters
at 26th Floor, YHC Tower, No. 1 Sheung Yuet Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at

Shareholders’” Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders
to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a new resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the above
paragraph heading “How Shareholder Can Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the relevant
documents must be validly served on the Company’s
registered office in the Cayman Islands or the place of
business in Hong Kong and headquarters within the
requisite period of time. The full details of the procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director were posted on 31 December 2015 on the web-site

of the Company at http://www.hkperjew.com.hk.
Significant Changes in Constitutional
Documents

As of the date of this report, there were no changes made to

the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“Report”) of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) provides an update information on the
environmental, social and governance work of the Group
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Year”). The Report is principally prepared by reference to
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and key performance indicators with
reference to Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Reporting Scope

The Group operates its principal business in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) and the PRC
and therefore the Report only covers the Group’s operation
in these two areas. The Report also focuses on the following

two subject areas during the Reporting Year:

A. Environmental (emissions, use of resources
consumption, together with the environmental and

natural resources)

B. Social (employment, health and safety, development
and training, labor standards, supply chain
management, product responsibility, anti-corruption

and community investment).

For details of the Group’s corporate governance, please also
refer to the Corporate Governance Report included in the
Annual Report 2018 of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A. Environmental

1.

Emissions

The Group’s operation does not result in
significant air and greenhouse gas emissions or,
discharges into water and land. The wastes created
during the operation are mainly generated from
electricity consumption and vehicles fleet. The
Group has placed efforts in energy savings such as
replacing aging lamps with LED lamps, installing
blackout curtains to reduce energy loss, set up
policy to encourage staff to switch off lights and
electrical appliances when they are not in use. As
for vehicles fleet, the Group encourage the use
of hybrid or electric vehicles whenever possible.
During the Reporting Year, the Group did not
receive any notification on non-compliance with
laws and regulations that have significant impacts
on the Group.

During the Reporting Year, the majority of
nitrogen oxides (NOx) and Sulphur oxides (SOx)
were emitted from fuel consumption of electricity
and vehicle fleet. During the Reporting Year, it is
estimated that 9,400 litres (2017: 17,000 litres) of
petrol and 1.7 million kWh (2017: 1.11 million
kWh) of electricity was consumed. The Group
estimated that there were 12.7 kg (2017: 20.5 kg)
of NOx and 0.2 kg (2017: 0.2 kg) of SOx were
emitted during the Reporting Year. The change in
the usage of petrol and electricity was mainly due
to the relocation of Perfect Factory. Nevertheless,
the Group has ensured consistent efficiency use of
petrol and electricity in the new environment.

Generation of hazardous wastes in the production

process is considered minimal.
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Use of Resources

To achieve the goals of environmental protection
and reduction of its production costs, the Group
has placed the following energy conservation
measures in the production plants and the office:

1. Adjusted the central air-conditioning control
system to reduce electricity consumption.

2. Electricity-saving fluorescent tubes are
installed to save energy and reduce energy

consumption.

3. Stipulating employees to turn off the lights
and air-conditioning system after office or

when not in use.

4. Encourages employees to use electricity or
hybrid motor vehicles and provides facilities
whenever possible.

During the Reporting Year, the electricity
consumption by the Group was approximately 1.7
million kWh (2017: 1.2 million kWh). During the
report year, Hong Kong operation has consumed
approximately 0.2 million kWh (2017: 0.2
million kWh) and PRC operation has consumed
approximately 1.5 million kWh (2017: 1.0 million
KWh). The water consumption by the Group
was approximately 73,000 cubic meters (2017:
33,000 cubic meters. Most of them are consumed
in PRC as Hong Kong office are for general
administrative and sales purpose. The increase in
water consumption in the PRC was mainly due to
the relocation of Perfect Factory. The Group, same
as last year, has ensured the consistent efficiency
in the use of water in the new environment. The
water in PRC are mainly supplied by the state-
owned water utility company and have no issue in

water sourcing.

Packing material the Group used are light and
recyclable. The packing material used during the
Reporting Year was estimated to be less than 20 Kg.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

3. Environmental and Natural Resources

The operation of the Group does not constitute
any material adverse effects on the environmental
and natural resources. The Group promotes
green office to raise the environmental protection
awareness of the employees and implements the
following measures to achieve our goal:

(i) Encouraging employees to treasure food and

reduce food wastes;

(ii) Staff canteen provides healthy meal with
less oil and salt to encourage our employees
to pay attention to healthy diet and reduce

consumption;

(iii) The Group strives to facilitate paperless office
with more frequent use of electronic forms,
electronic photo picking system and recycled
papers. and

(iv) The Group will compare the utility expenses
each month to look for ways to reduce the

impact on natural resources and environment.

(v) Incorporate the green concept when designing
the production plants and the Perfect Group
Jewellery Industry Park.

Social Employment and Labor Practices

In order to create a united and harmonious professional
team, the Group provides the employees a fair working
environment, and enhance their knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work and thereby their work
efficiency.

Employment

To retain talents, the Group develops and provides
incentives to its employees based on their performance
and productivity. In terms of recruitment, promotion,
remuneration, working hours, leaves and benefits, the
Group ensures the conditions of which are competitive
and in compliance with relevant laws. The Group also
provides Share Option Scheme to give incentive to staff
to share the growth of the Group.
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The Group pursues equal opportunities in terms of
recruitment policy. The Group also ensures the fairness
of process without any violation of the local laws
and regulations such as Sex, Disability, Family Status
and Race Discrimination Ordinances, Employment

Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group focuses on investing in talents and offering
a promising career path. Thus, internal re-designation
and promotion of potential employees will be first
considered to fill any vacancies within the Group.
Promotion criteria are based on various factors such
as employees’ working performance, leadership and

cooperation.

The Group ensures the employees’ remuneration be
competitive in the labor market. Moreover, in assessing
the rate of annual salary adjustment, the Group
takes into account the annual financial results, make
reference to the economic environment, inflation,
salary trends and industry salary reference, and base
on appraisal reports and work performance of the

employees to make revision.

The Group ensures that the requirements of relevant
laws and guidelines have been compiled with. The
Group participated retirement benefits scheme in Hong
Kong and PRC such as Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, Pension insurance system(%%%%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ) in
PRC.

The Group also provides its employees with a quality
working environment. A spacious staff canteen and
floor lounge in the office building are available for the
employees to use. The Group organizes staff buffet
and dinner from time to time and distributes gifts to

employees at festivals.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group employed
approximately 118 full-time employees. The total
number of employees classified by gender, function and

age group was as follows:
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Total number of employees by gender: TP T #5360 0 B AR
Gender 2018 2017
4 71 20184 20174
Male F 67 163
Female B/ 51 104
118 (note) (Fff5E) 267
Total number of employees by function: i ik e #2018 B AR -
Function 1% R
Directorate and managerial staff HEHLEEHMANE 13 31
Clerical employees SO AR B 105 236
118 (note) (FiEE) 267
Total number of employees by age group: e A i AL B 3 04 R B AR B
Age Group A 1 40
18 to 30 185 307K 15 79
31 to 50 315505 79 172
Over 50 505% A | 24 16
118 (note) (P E) 267
Total number of employees by geographic region: e 3t B ) O 14 R B AR
Hong Kong s 41 89
PRC Lz 77 228
118 (note) (P EE) 267
Note: The reduction in number of employees during Bt 5T« IR B N BOR o A B > 2R R T
the Reporting Year was mainly to the change of Fomm s ERESE . R OE B
production process on relocation of factory and a VR T T 5 9 A 25 G A S 3K o

number of employees were assigned to production
partner with similar pay package.

The employee turnover rate by gender: i Bl 43 60 48 B AR R
Gender Turnover rate
'k 1 TR 8
Male B 7.92% 4.91%
Female EgEs 5.88% 4.81%
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The employee turnover rate by age group

Age Group AF s 411
18 to 30 18E 305K
31 to 50 315505
Over 50 506 DL b

e 47 AEL T 153 0 0 B

2018 2017
20184F 20174F
10.71% 2.53%
0.79% 5.23%
3.03% 6.25%

The turnover rate by gender and by age group differ
significantly compared with last year was mainly due
to the relocation of Perfect Factory to Perfect Group
Jewellery Industry Park and streamlining of certain
production process.

In respect of dismissal policy, the Group offers those
underperforming employees or those who make general
mistakes a chance to improve. Should the employee
does not make considerable improvement within a
reasonable time, the Group then considers to dismiss
him and handle it in accordance with the labor laws
and regulation in Hong Kong and PRC.

The Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide the employees with a
safe and harmonious working condition. The Group
provides suitable training to the employees whenever
possible. The staff are also provided with pay leave
whenever they attend suitable course to upgrade their
work ability and performance.

The Group has appointed a staff who is responsible for
the promotion, training, supervision and management
of occupational health and safety to enhance the

employees' occupational safety awareness.
ploy p y

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not record
any work-related injury or fatality or loss days due
to injury and was not aware of any material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
would have any significant impact on the Group.
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Development and Training

The Group provides employees at all levels with all-
around technical training, to ensure the employees
proactively equip themselves with skills and thus attain
outstanding performance. The Group also provides the
employees with relevant courses and seminars to enable
them to grasp the work-related knowledge, skills and
attitude to keep abreast of the latest trend.

The training activities include:

(i) organize training courses and seminars on a regular

basis for the employees to attend;

(i) distribute training materials on a regular basis to

the employees for them to review;

(iii) arrange external professional training courses for

the employees to attend.

41.2% (2017: 18.4%) in terms of number of staff have
received formal training course during the Reporting
Year. The rest are provided with reading materials,
business updates notes, circulation of study materials
etc to enhance their knowledge. Of this 41.2% (2017:
18.4%), 16.3% (2017: 4.1%) are senior management
and the rest of 83.7% (2017: 95.9%) are other
employees. 57.14% (2017: 57.14%) of this 41.18%
(2017: 18.35%) are male and 42.86% (2017: 42.86%)

are female.

On average, they received 23.7 hours (2017: 13.5
hours) of training. On average, 35.4 hours (2017:
14.7 hours) and 2.2 hours (2017: 2.5 hours) of formal
training course are received by male and female staff
respectively. Senior staff received approximately 40.0
hours (2017: 16.5 hours) of formal training while the
other employees received approximately 20.5 hours
(2017: 13.3 hours) of formal training. The increase on
the training on staff was mainly due to the relocation of
Perfect Factory and rescheduling of certain production

process.
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Labor Standards

The Group has formulated policies to ensure all
employees and job applicants are entitled to fair
opportunity and treatment. The Group strives to
complies with the local laws and regulation throughout
the recruitment and employment process. The Group
prohibits any employment of child labor Employment
of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and Employment of Young Persons
(Industry) Regulations (Chapter 57C of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The human resources department in
each location is instructed to inspect the identity of the
applicants to ensure any employment of child labor.
The Group has a clear staff manual to prohibits forced
labor and ensure legal and volunteer employment of all

employees.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with relevant labor laws
and regulations that would have any significant impact

on the Group.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The principal business of the Group is in the design and
manufacturing of high-end jewelry and therefore precious
metals are the major resources consumed by the Group.
Significant portion of raw materials and processing materials
(in term of dollar value) are sourced in Hong Kong and
these suppliers sources their products through India or

China.

The Group pays much attention to the suppliers. During
supplier selection process, it takes into account the price,
stability of goods as well as reputation. Afterwards, the
department head and management head will review and
approve in order to ensure the procured equipment and raw
materials come with good quality at reasonable price. The
Group also reviews the quality of stock or materials with

sophisticated machines from time to time.
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Product Responsibility

Due to the nature of our products, the Group seldom
subjects to recall for safety and health reasons. The Group
always reviews the quality of the stock with sophisticated
machines from time to time, before, during and after the

production.

The Group has team of management, including the sales
director, to look after the complaints received and in case
the Group received any complaints, the Group targets to
resolve the issues with customers within the shortest possible

time.

The Group understands the importance of intellectual
property and makes every effort to safeguard and protect the
intellectual property. By the same token, the Group places
much emphasis on the infringement of other intellectual
property rights. During the Reporting Year, the Group had

not been subject to any material claim in this matter.

The Group keeps reminding the employees of and
emphasizing the importance of safeguarding the security
of personal data. When collecting and processing such
data, the Group will comply with the local laws, regulation
and guidelines to protect the privacy. The Group also has
measures designated to prevent unauthorized access to

personal data such as password and code.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that would have any significant impact on the Group in

respect of the privacy issue.
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Anti-corruption

The Group recognizes the importance of the ethical
conducts and integrity of each director and all employees
in order to maintain a fair, honest and integrity-based
business environment. The Group has formulated a clear
code of conduct in respect of the prevention of bribery,
employees’ interests, conflicts of interest, prevention of
extortion and fraud in the employee handbook. Besides, the
Group has an anti-bribery policy in place to further provide
clear guidelines in respect of anti-bribery and maintaining
honesty and integrity. Such policy applies to all directors
and employees of the Group, together with the agents
acting on behalf of the Group. The Group reminds the
employees by internal notice to avoid bribery and acceptance
of advantages as and when appropriate. Furthermore, the
Group encourages its employees to report any suspected
corruption, bribery or misconducts through the whistle-
blowing mechanism established by the Group. Such
reports are kept confidential and the Group has established
a procedure to protect the whistleblowers from unfair

treatment.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that would have any significant impact on the Group, nor

any corruption litigation against the Group or its employees.
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Community

Community Investment

The Group participates in and promotes various community
and volunteer activities for helping the needy in the
society, promoting environmental awareness, fostering and
facilitating industry development, with an aim to contribute

to the society and fulfill our corporate social responsibility.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has participated a
number of activities organized and appointed staff with pay
to participate in related industry associations such as Hong
Kong Gold and Silver Ornament Workers and Merchants
General Union and Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’
Association. The Group also encouraged staff to participate
in the other industry-related charity or social welfare
activities by providing monetary sponsorship or pay leave
to staff. In Dec 2018, the Group also provided manpower
and resources including venue to assist the organization of
The 6th Shunde Jewelry Tourism Cultural Festival and 3nd

Shunde International Jewellry Show.
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Deloitte.

To the Shareholders of

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“the Group”) set out on pages 79 to 200, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Tmpairment assessment of trade receivables

We identified impairment assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter due
to the significance of trade receivables to the
Group’s consolidated financial position and
the involvement of subjective judgement
and management estimates in evaluating the
expected credit losses (‘ECL”) of the Group’s
trade receivables at the end of the reporting

period.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net
trade receivables amounting to approximately
HK$104,867,000, which represented
approximately 9.86% of total assets of the
Group and out of these trade receivables
of approximately HK$52,030,000 were
past due. As explained in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, in the
current year, the Group adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 9 “Financial
Instruments” (HKERS 9) and recognised an
additional impairment of HK$148,000 as
at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

Understanding key controls on how management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables;

Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made by
the Group as at 1 January 2018 on initial adoption of
HKERS 9;

Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables aging analysis as at 1
January 2018 and 31 December 2018, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analsis
with the relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and
other supporting documents;

Assessing management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables
as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018,
including their identification of credit impaired trade
receivables, the reasonableness of management’s
grouping of the remaining trade receivables into
different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category
in the provision matrix (with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information);
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Tmpairment assessment of trade receivables - Continued

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements, management of the
Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns, after considering aging,
repayment history and/or past due status of
respective trade receivables. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information.
In addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The loss allowance amount of the credit
impaired trade receivables is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of
expected future credit losses.

As disclosed in notes 21 and 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, the
Group recognised an additional amount
of HK$823,000 of impairment of trade
receivables for the year and the Group’s
lifetime ECL on trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately
HKS$1,858,000.
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Evaluating the disclosure regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements; and

Testing subsequent settlements of credit impaired
trade receivables, on a sample basis, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation to cash receipt from
trade receivables subsequent to the end of the current
reporting period.
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter
Allowances of inventories - finished goods

We identified allowances of inventories -
finished goods as a key audit matter as the
Group had significant amount of finished
goods which are fine jewellery products as
at the end of the reporting period. These
finished goods may be subject to impairment
due to fluctuation in selling prices. In
determining the allowance to be made to
finished goods, management considers the
current market conditions, estimated selling
prices of the finished goods, movements and

subsequent sales of the finished goods.

The Group’s finished goods as at
31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$105,695,000 as disclosed in note 18 to

the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s allowances of
inventories - finished goods included:

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
provision policy on finished goods and
evaluating management’s process for
determining the impairment of finished goods;

Testing the subsequent sales of finished goods,
on a sample basis, to supporting documents;

Obtaining an independent valuation of
individual fine jewellery products in significant
amounts; evaluating an independent external
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;
and the reasonableness of key assumptions
adopted in the valuation model;

Discussing with management and evaluating
the impairment assessment by management on
finished goods without/with little subsequent
sales after the reporting period; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation
of the net realisable value of finished goods
with reference to the current market conditions,
estimated selling prices, movement and
subsequent sales of finished goods.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

8 0 B <

Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of properties under development for sale and properties held for sale

We identified the impairment assessment of
properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale as a key audit matter
as the Group had significant amount of
properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale which are jewellery
industrial properties and ancillary facilities
as at the end of the reporting period. These
properties are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. In determining
the net realisable value of these properties,
management considers the expected future
selling prices and costs necessary to complete
the sale of these properties, with reference to
the valuations performed by an independent
firm of qualified professional property valuer
(the “Valuer”) for certain properties. The
valuations involved significant management’s
judgement and estimation in relation to
estimating the future selling prices and future
construction costs.

The Group’s properties under development
for sale and properties held for sale as
at 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$257,369,000 and HK$121,974,000,
respectively as disclosed in notes 19 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
properties under development for sale and properties held for
sale included:

. Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer
and management of the Group about the
valuation techniques, significant assumptions
adopted, key inputs and data used in the
valuation of properties under development for
sale;

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;

. Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by
the Valuer and management of the Group by
comparing with relevant market information
with similar properties; and

. Conducting site visits to properties under
development for sale to observe the development
progress and evaluating management’s
estimation on the future construction costs with

reference to signed construction contracts.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B 1 e B S0t 2 i i 2 %

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#E20184F12H31 H I
2018 2017
20184 20174
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
it & Fiki T
Revenue e 4 5 522,005 352,043
Cost of goods sold B E & AR (354,020) (241,859)
Gross profit EA 167,985 110,184
Other income H A A 6 2,616 1,263
Other gains and losses HoAth i 2z K 518 7 (1,360) 965
Selling and distribution costs %ﬁ%&@%ﬁﬁyﬁx (14,905) (15,380)
General and administrative expenses — M AT BB S (48,781) (42,235)
Finance costs B 8 (3,753) (1,005)
Profit before taxation W ot i s A 9 101,802 53,792
Taxation B 11 (30,230) (5.717)
Profit for the year A 19 34 ) 71,572 48,075
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year A Hoh 2 T i g5 (B 52
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: S & B 2
BEMNIEE
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment upon R 2 EEY) %fﬁﬁﬁ
transfer to investment properties ESY GG
— Surplus on revaluation —E A 3,601 -
— Deferred taxation — R HERLTE (900) -
2,701 -
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEREN T HE
to profit or loss: BRmEE :
Exchange differences arising on B AN T e 7 AR Y
translation of foreign operations BEE 50, 7 % (15,427) 10,902
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year A R ECA A T (B 32 Ui 4 (12,726) 10,902
Total comprehensive income for the year A TRy 2 TH W i AR R 58,846 58,977
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: TN BIN A A A
Wi Al (18 -
Owners of the Company /N ﬁjf?gﬁ/\ 55,270 48,843
Non-controlling interests I £ JRHE 5 16,302 (768)
71,572 48,075
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: I Il A 4 B i A< 47 Ji
2T W g AR AR
Owners of the Company /N ﬁj%ﬁ/\ 46,074 56,630
Non-controlling interests I e B 45 12,772 2,347
58,846 58,977
Earnings per share g i 2 A 13
— Basic —EK 4.09 HK cents 1l 3.62 HK cents 51l
— Diluted — 4.04 HK cents #fll ~ 3.58 HK cents #{lll

2018 Annual Report 4£E#Hi%E 79



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i WB5IR DLk

At 31 December 2018
R20184F12H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 Tt T T
Non-current assets IF i B G
Property, plant and equipment Y2k~ BB Kk 14 131,073 28,984
Prepaid lease payments TE A L 3KE 15 14,863 16,890
Investment properties G 16 9,563 -
Deposits i 4 17 44 4,121
Deferred tax assets % S i TE A 27 285 -
155,828 49,995
Current assets B
Inventories sy 18 167,033 179,956
Properties under development for sale B P EYE 19 257,369 186,397
Properties held for sale FrIE W g 2E 20 121,974 =
Trade and other receivables B T B Ho A JRE i 3k IE 21 143,386 110,627
Prepaid lease payments TE AR B SKIE 15 316 351
Bank balances and cash SRAT &G ik B 4 22 218,114 59,476
908,192 536,807
Current liabilities i ) B
Trade and other payables B4 5 Jo Ho At A 3R 0E 23 110,067 29,139
Contract liabilities GHAE 24 214,273 -
Taxation payable JRE St 1 22,482 9,875
Bank loans — amount due within one year ATE R TR —4E N
2 25 16,735 25,580
363,557 64,594
Net current assets i B E FHE 544,635 472,213
Total assets less current liabilities % ARE R B A R 700,463 522,208
Non-current liabilities FE i B & R
Provision for long service payments 1= 0 IR HS 4 8 A 26 986 1,177
Deferred tax liabilities % S B TH A 27 866 83
Bank loans — amount due after one year WITER R —FE
ZI| H 25 140,276 =
142,128 1,260
Net assets R 558,335 520,948
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
HOWMBHRILER
At 31 December 2018
R20184E12H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174F
NOTE HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 Tt T T

Share capital and reserves B A At
Share capital JE A 28 4,500 4,500
Reserves it i 468,760 444 314
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN E AN A HE 45 473,260 448,814
Non-controlling interests IE 1 A 25 85,075 72,134
558,335 520,948

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 199

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kan Kin Kwong

il

DIRECTOR

#=H

E79H F 199 H Z G5 A I H R & 48l #E 4 g
2019453 H 22 H L S 52t 185 - Sl el 1 51 85 AR

KEE

Chung Chi Keung
5 5 R
DIRECTOR
Ea
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

i Mg 22 W R

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#E 2018412431 H IL4FEJE
Attributable to owners of the Company
AT L
Property Share ~ Statutory Non-
Shate Share  Special revaluation  Exchange  options  surplus  Retained controlling
apil  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  profits  Subtotal  interest  Totl
ik BhE  BE L
Wk RBGE SURE  EWEE EREE  RE RRRE REEN M BE M
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
Tt Tk FEx T T T T Tk Tk T TEx
(note a) (note b)
(it (Bt
At January 2017 Ra0i7E1 1 4500 B8 (440) = = = - 3I006 412940 - 49
Profi (loss) for the year Epighl (8) - - - - - - B 7 It (768) 48075
Exchange differences arising A EREL N2
on translation of foreign operations - - = = 7,78 = = = 7787 3510902
Total comprehensive income for the year 74 A4S - - = -1 = - A8 56600 24 5891
Recogiion of equity-setled RANEREE R
shate-based payment (note 29) 30308 () - - - - - 6,711 - - 6,711 - 6,711
Share aptions lapsed (note 29) SRR (Wh3k2o) - - - - - (467) - - (467) - (467)
Contribution from a HhbRiE
non-controllng sharcholder - - - - - - - - - 0078 7
Dividend (note 12 RE (W) - . = - - - -0 (7.000) - ()
At 31 December 2017 o7E1A3A 4300 93,840 (4430) - 7087 0,244 - 308 44884 T34 520,948
Ac Janary 208 R8I IR i ps0 (440 -y 6 - Mgy g T 5098
Adjustments (note 2) W () - - - - - - - (148) (149) = (149)
A oy 2018 el R0IsiEL AR (EE5) B0 B 4 B Y SO K6 B 0w
Drofit for he year ERiAl - - - - - - - B BsM 16 TSN
Revaluation of property, plant and LEEN OB TIES
equipment upon transfer to R Rt
investment properties
- Surplus on revaluarion -EfiRk - - A - - - S 55) N T T Y
~ Deferred tavation R - - - (630) - - - - (030) (270) (900)
Exchange differences arising on AR EHELIES £
translation of foreign operations - - - - (11,087) - - - (1087)  (4340)  (15427)
Toral comprehensive income (expense) WA (737 4%
for the year = = = 1891 (11,087) - - 55,270 46,074 1772 58,846
Recognition of equity-setled TR S H RO R
share-based payment (note 29) (H5t29) - - - - - 6 - - 6,722 - 6,722
Share options lapsed (note 29) BERESRA (hztao) = = = = = (1,202) = = (1,200) - (1,20
Share options cancelled and BREEREGZ RERA
transfer (o retained profts - - - = E (503) = 503 = = =
Contribution from a FERRRIE
non-controllng sharcholder - - - - - - - - - 169 169
Didend (note 12) B (k) - - - - X - - ) ) - ()
Transfer Y - - - - - - 545 (5439) - - -
At31 December 2018 018E1A3H 4500 93,840 (4436) 1,891 (3,300 11,201 543 364069 473,260 8,075 99833
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Special reserve represents the reserve arising from the
business transfer of the jewellery business of the shareholders
by then to the Group on 26 June 2015.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of
their profit after taxation reported in their statutory financial
statements prepared under relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to enterprises established in
the PRC (the “PRC GAAP”) to the statutory surplus reserve.

ML -

SRR SR
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

REFI Rt A FR TR 201546 26 H i IRF JBE R 2 PR BT 2
B RS 2 AR % T 2 2 2 A -

AR b 3 A\ RSN ([ o [ 1) A1 7 45 4 2E AT B
AR > v B I 4 ] 75 B % IR R
L 2 AR S B 2wt R B B 5 AR (e
R B R D) A B R A R R T 2 i 2 BR
A% Uit 1) 2 1000 W3 70 75 22 B BR Aot
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

R TR S

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H L4

2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T 0 THs o
Operating activities IR E
Profit before taxation o A5 A7 Jat ) 101,802 53,792
Adjustments for: UL IE B fE i
Release of prepaid lease payments A L K T 42 TR 286 -
Depreciation on property, YIZE ~ B T sk A 1 8
plant and equipment 2,282 2,650
Impairment loss recognised B 5y REWCHR IE 2 B HlE 7R
on trade receivables 9 18 823 -
Reversal of allowances for doubtful debts S BR 43 A 35 ] - (1,093)
Interest income B A (1,881) (330)
Interest expenses FILE B % 3,753 1,005
Written off of property, o3 ~ S5 B wk e i B
plant and equipment 889 -
Share-based payment expenses DA 3 2 A5k 3V B 32 5,520 6,244
Operating cash flows before movements in G A S B AT Y
working capital BB e = 113,474 62,268
Decrease (increase) in inventories BB (M) 12,368 (10,393)
Increase in properties under development for sale %R P 1R SRS N (326,736) (42,687)
Decrease in properties held for sale FrAE B W 2E D 122,826 -
Increase in trade and other receivables B Sy B A JRE i 2k TEL BB (35,897) (33,228)
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5y B HoAh E A 3K IE
other payables and provision DL B2 485 i 184 (i) 84,031 (1,936)
Increase in contract liabilities A H A E R 222,561 -
Cash generated from (used in) operations meEprts (i) Ble 192,627 (25,976)
Tax paid 2 A B 1A (17,454) (6,102)
Net cash generated from (used in) KB s (I ) B4 54
operating activities 175,173 (32,078)
Investing activities EQ e
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B Y2 B Mk (114,574) (50,661)
Refund of the deposits paid B B AHE 4 4,077 =
Interest received & WA B 1,881 330
Additions to prepaid lease payments FEAS AH B A E 1 hn - (125,942)
Net cash used in investing activities PG B AT B A (108,616) (176,273)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#E20184F12H31 H I
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T T
Financing activities il G )
New bank loans raised ST G SR AT B K 357,188 74,831
Contribution from a non-controlling IR R '
shareholder 169 69,787
Repayment of bank loans fE 75 SR AT B K (220,331) (51,616)
Dividends paid EAfTARE (27,000) (27,000)
Interest paid 2 FE (11,673) (1,005)
Net cash generated from financing activities il 3 ) BT A B < AR 98,353 64,997
Net increase (decrease) in cash and W& KR &% EY
cash equivalents Ham (k) 3R 164,910 (143,354)
Cash and cash equivalents at AR I B 4 K B4 S (E W)
beginning of the year 59,476 202,567
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A1 BEE [T 2% 53 ) 57 28 (6,272) 263
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, SRR 1 B4 B B SE (H )
represented by bank balances and cash AUERAT 45 8 K B4 218,114 59,476
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H L4

86

GENERAL

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 June 2015 and its shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 4 January 2016. The registered office of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and the principal place of business of the Company is
at 26/F, YHC Tower, 1 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon
Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Immaculate Diamonds
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) which is controlled by the controlling
shareholder.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
are designing, manufacturing and exporting of fine
jewellery and property development. Particulars of the

subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is different from
the functional currencies of the group entities. The
reason for selecting HK$ as its presentation currency is
because the shareholders of the Company are located

in Hong Kong.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited {42 [H] [ P54 % A R 2 7]

— B E R

R 2% 4 B PR R IR A PR W) (TA A &) ) it
201546 A 16 H 76 B 2 B & ok M 5 > 3
& 3 k2016451 4 H 76 & s Wt &5 28 5 T A
PR R ([HE2E BT ]) bl o A28 W A9 G il 2
I g i Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI1-1111, Cayman
Islands © 45 23 7] (Y 3 22 8 26 3t 2 2 5 W L
HE ¥ ML 1R B B B b D26 o AR
A (1 B B A AR I N R Ay — THITE 35 J& i &
RES ([ )@ R « BE & ) 5E M Sz 19 A A
Immaculate Diamonds Limited > #% 7\ F) B #4

i e AR 42 1]

AN R — BB T] o AN E B~
F I W SRt~ B R O R R
VAR WS 58 o A R AR 2 B SR 2% W B A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time in the current year:

HKEFRS 9

Financial Instruments

HKERS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and

HKERS 2 Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to

HKEFRS 4

Amendments to As part of the Annual

Hong Kong Improvements to HKFRSs
Accounting Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle
(“HKAS”) 28

Amendments to Transfers of Investment
HKAS 40 Property

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

W FH 5B T A8 948 YA 5 ko R I ([ A
S A R L 1) B AT AR

TP AR A BE 5 i A 2% 2 B RT A i
e o 1 J) R 45 WY A

AL O AR B E B T 5 th Bl g st
il g (17 s 8 &t A2 8 1) AR A 987 3T &
B i M R B RT AR

BB HREEN SMTH

599

T HRAER  HEF &AL
1598 L rd BB RT

s (BBHH®R S H R
HRBEZAY) BATE
— R REEE 225

FWMHRAED  DRG AES M
SN M B RT A REE

U A o MR BRI A A L
SEASE B RT 4L IR A 4 ]

— {5 s B
ok R S 9 5%
(&R TH]

g R VBB B & W BB i o
(THWGsHER]) #2014 22016
B8R BT I 1 A B e

13 2

s g R Y

BA0TEI EHT

BR T SCRT I3 Ab > T A 4 52 IR A R T 7 4
5 e e ) B A AT A S e 3 A4 B RO 1 4
JEE 9 7 5 T A 5 R B BOIR UL B2 BGZ E A
Jt 5 i 2 B R 4 R IR R B
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying this Standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained
profits (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has
not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance
with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15,
the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following

major sources:

*  manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products
. property development

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %5 42 ¥l |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 )
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2.1 HEMEHAFENBISHEIES
B #We 4

A 4R A A AR B E W T A o
et HE QISR 1S9 o A ok BB koo YR
SRS HE B s & At e I A5 185% [k
i)~ AR RS
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7% 4 [ 28 91 ME FR A s S A e )
515595 o 1 B O % e R ) B AR R
AE R20184FE1 H 1 H & K E M % B
PR o A E R E R H AT 2 B B
A A7) R B8 T A (B At AR AR R o
) fesR > H 4 ) AR - T
o MR A S RS A e R SR 15 HE
A ST o 7S A [ 2R A R R 201 84F
1A 1H ¥R 58 B8R A 4 38 0 TE A o e
HI o (A6 > p S BU R G AR 4 A
R AR AR E TP & R
FIEE 1155 [ 58 4 40 | DL S A B w2 B BT
A s 25 L R R AT R LR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”— continued

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the

amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

B 45 Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HZE20184F12H31H IHFEE

2. MEHY AW N ([
8 S A Y L 1) BT AR — 4

2.1 HEMBEHFENBISEIES
A R R | — A4

) 42 JRE ) e i B i o E )5
1598 A 15 BB

T8 A ¥ R 20184E1 H 1 H 2 45 & BE B
SR 2 R i R 2 A R T AE M ARG PR o

of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line A EHE R 2 BB ENIEE -
items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amount amounts
previously under
reported at 31 HKFRS 15 at 1
December 2017  Reclassification January 2018
R
S 785 i o S
56 Rif 7 159K
20174F12H31H #20184F
2 51 iy W% i HHT B 1A 1 H K R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T#n T# L
Current liabilities B AR
Trade and other payables & 5 K H A £+ 3k 29,139 (454) 28,685
Contract liabilities HHAME - 454 454
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

90

AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts

with Customers”— continued

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 — continued

Impact on the consolidated statement of
cash flows at 1 January 2018

2. JHE BT A R R ([
o S 5 N L 1) B T AR — 4

2.1 HEMEHAFENBISHEIES
o HW s | — A

S s B i RS
1558 A 15 B B — 1

#2018 1 H1H 2 454 Bl &
Vi B 2 R

1) iy I8

Amounts
without

application of

As reported HKEFRS 15
at 31 December at 1 January
2017 Adjustments 2018
Wt
S 2018%F1H1H
20174 Sif: 48 1 FH
12H31H A
P 2 $i R EI1sRZE&H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T# 7t T#x T# L
Operating activities BB B
Increase in contract liabilities A‘Z/J A fE - 454 454
Decrease in trade and other B Gy B HoAth A R IE
payables and provision DA T 5 4 W > (1,936) (454) (2,390)

As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers
of HK$454,000 in respect of sales contracts
signed with customers previously included in
trade and other payables were reclassified to

contract liabilities.

The directors of the Company consider the
application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised

in the respective reporting periods.

R20184F1 H1H > #hIERTRIAE 5 K HAth g
3K TEA B B K 5 A5 5T 8 &
HIE454,000 CEEH A AL AME -

AN FIERE S - U B
15 SR 7 45 e 5 U TR e e e A ) B

Iﬁﬁj{ﬁ/@ 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements
for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2)
expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets

and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS
9. i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity,

without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKEFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

2. MEHY AW N ([
8 S A Y L 1) BT AR — 4

2.2 7 i A B ik S SR 0Bk [ < il
TH]

JRAS AR ASE T CE T 7 i B
HAEQISE SR [l T A | K3 HAh 7 s
B 0 A 4 U 0 A B A R BT
i S s o YE R 2R 9 B 51 AE A B 1)
BEE B AREN B LGRS 2)
B B W TR R ([T &
R 1) 5 Je3)— BB i gt BR AUE

7% £ B 2 e 7 vk B 5 e o M T 28 9 9% BT
S 1 208 T Ak SRR R A s B 5 i 4 o )
5955 - B ¥ R20184F1 H1H (%7 ¥k HE
FH H) Sl 4 A% 1 e SR 0 L HL 38 99
Ao AtERE (BEENGSE
PR M E) > HE 4R 22018
AETHH &R fERR Y T ELE A B
FE o JR20174F12H 31 H 19 B 1) 4 %8 B
R20184F1 H 1 H /Y M 1 & 48 2 M 1 2=
BETA A0 R B8 ik R B HE 2 0 L A S 43
TR > PEZHE S LR E R

H 7 EE B R T e IR s R e R 5
395 [l TR« fEsE Mewt & i &
SRR rd <g S - e K
o

DRI B A v B 5 i Y6 A1 55 9 9% T E
Z G RHBUR 2 BRI B R 3 BE R o
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
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£

02

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” —
continued

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 9

Below illustrates the classification and
measurement (including impairment) of financial
assets subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1
January 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKERS 9 requires an ECL model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The ECL model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred

before credit losses are recognised.

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKEFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL using lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics.

Loss allowance for other financial assets at
amortised cost mainly comprise of other
receivables and bank balances, and are measured
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis and there
had been no significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %5 42 ¥l |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 45 Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12H31 H 1L
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. HE R BY A s s A e 1 ([ 4%
AMENDMENTS TO HONG 8 T A R T ]) B ) AR — A
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued
2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” — 2.2 HHE W i HE R SR o9E [ 4
continued TH|-#
Summary of effects arising from initial ] QAFEH%%E{%WW%%HD{E 1] 259
application of HKFRS 9 — continued 982 R B — 7
Impairment under ECL model — continued TR B 18 #0109 06 (E — 45
As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit loss A20184E1 H1H > HAME B ks 18 T?x‘ﬁ
allowance of HK$148,000 has been recognised 148,000%5 7T £ A A~ B i A1 e 8 o
against retained profits. The additional loss A1 e 18 48 1 A ) B IE?DVJF
allowance is charged against the trade receivables.
All loss allowances for trade receivables as at 2017412 H31H 2 & 5 EWGRE 2
31 December 2017 reconcile to the opening i A iR B4 E2018F 1 H1IH Z & 5
balances of trade receivables as at 1 January 2018 JRE UK I 2 4F ) 45 B 2 BRI R
is as follows:
Trade
receivables
B 5 e W ek JH
HK$°000
T
At 31 December 2017 (audited) R20174F12H31 H (B3 %)
— HKAS 39 - e st R 53958 88,204
Amounts remeasured through 25 388 AFA40) 0% B i ) ER R A
opening retained profits [ 4 %A (148)
At 1 January 2018 (unaudited) R2018F1H1H CREHFZ) 88,056
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated
statement of financial position arising
from the application of all new
standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position had
to be restated. The following table shows the
adjustments recognised for each individual line
item. Line items that were not affected by the

changes have not been included.

2. JHE BT A R R ([
o S 5 N L 1) B T AR — 4

2.3

PR e A 50 e B 3B 4 0 45
S 5 IR D i Ak 2 R

B P bt A 4 ] O 2 S AR
MG MR RATES - &
51 A A TH B 2 Al RS T R o 3 A
IR Z BB YA -

31 December 1 January
2017 HKEFRS 15 HKEFRS 9 2018
BHEMYE  HENE

20174F  Hew A Hen Rl 20184

12H31H F15%% o9k 1H1H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T T 0 T Tt

(Audited) (Restated)

(RE) (A A)
Contract liabilities HHAR = (454) = (454)
Trade and other receivables B Gy B HAh JE i 3k JH 110,627 - (148) 110,479
Trade and other payables B o R HoAt A 2k TE (29,139) 454 = (28,685)
Retained profits P B i ) (340,879) = 148 (340,731)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following

new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective:

HKEFRS 16

HKEFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to
HKERS 3

Amendments to
HKERS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to

HKAS 19

Amendments to

HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRSs

Leases!
Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017
Cycle!

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

W FHL 5B T A8 948 1A 5t o R B ([ A
8 S A Y L 1) BT AR — 4

A8 A EL i oA AR 2% Y 7 5T A 7
S S ko TR ) R AB RT A

oA 4 3 A R 51 6L A4
S 0 T o T 20 )
W

Frois W s e J)

165

T SN (R A 43
1798

Fi (B BHB R TEBESEZ AN
LRBEZAEY) il 5 [H 2
— BB 235

T WG] BRI e
E3EMEET

TR SN BAamfz R
SR TT LA R
Fris W5 el B B

105 NFE B A
iR Rl MG E
H28BE B HT B o A2
Fris e el RS9 EEMN e
K7 s g st )
SE8HE B ET
TFrits & e Jl) FHEMEIE ~ A6 i

F19BERIERT CACLIE

s EEh ) Q=N &
285 BT whEZRH
HE 75!
B vt BA TS S R S A s S R
ECE) HERI20154F &
20174F 4 HA 1)
4F JE Bl
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B B Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

B E20184E12 31 H 14
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. MERIBraT & v W % e R ([ 45
AMENDMENTS TO HONG B B ) BT A — 4

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in % 2 A 1EL i A 2B R0 3 5T A s B S

issued but not yet effective — continued i o Y R A RT A — 2R

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 201941 A 1 H 32 1% BH i 79 45 B 1)
after 1 January 2019. MM AE R

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 2 T T 7 Y H A Bk 2 4% B 4G Y A
after a date to be determined. YT A= 3 e

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 3 202141 A 1 B 302 1% BH i 79 45 2 1)
after 1 January 2021. T AE R

@ Effective for business combinations and asset 4 Bl B I 5202041 H 1 H 82 4% 5
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on U B0 A 4 L TR s 2 AR Y T
or after the beginning of the first annual period P Je o AL AR A o
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 5 74202041 A 1 H 32 1% BH i 79 45 2 1
after 1 January 2020. T AE R

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs BT SCHIT At B BT T 7 s B o e

mentioned below, the directors of the Company KAEFT AN » AR A ERFEY - A

anticipate that the application of all other new J A HC AR 6T 7 o B ) R

and amendments to HKFRSs will have no FI A AT LI AR Y S G U TS i R N 4

material impact on the consolidated financial HREE

statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKEFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales
and leaseback transactions to be determined based
on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the
transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a
sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to

subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value

assets.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

W FHL 5B T A8 948 1A 5t o R B ([ A
8 S A Y L 1) BT AR — 4

A o B o R SR 169k [ AL

T Y BB 75 Y S5 1650 5 AL R
FEN B FEL 85 22 B T @ st o 2 5 )\ — {25 A2
2o B 7 s TS i HE B GE 16 B A AR > ot
BE G R ERIE 1798 [T & | RARBE 1
B

A 1 B B o R 5 1 655 AR B P A R
e H 5 o AR [ 3 R R B 5 A o
B > T i S ot S 1 6 E AL B AR A [
38 7 KR 7 i A 5 ik o Y JU) 565 1 S S A R
B R T A A AR B R E T
SE o 7 v B i HE B 5F 16 BE AR BLAE A B 2
L E B S ME -

BRENHERMEREREEHES  CEHE
Fe il LB B [0 B R RN 8 R R
B > Slf ply AR R ZEOE i A AL e R A P R
FE B A B R U AR
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H L4
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at costs
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKEFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as operating cash

flows, respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be

presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease

cither as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %5 42 ¥l |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 )

M FH 5B T A8 948 WA 5 ko R ) ([ A
o S 5 N L 1) B T AR — 4

i B i SR 1698 [ LR | — 4

o F13 M 0 R IRAS B BB AR DARLAS
(M T 15 DLBR A1) B T 86 M B fE s 1R A
B Sl A B AR A AR A R A o
o MHE A BRI EHE GFE H M)
< HBERE - R HEAEEGH (HHa
5) PR F A B 00A DL R AH A R B R R A
HaadE o SE R R MINE - ALE A A
A EATHERIH RS 58 g A E LA B
MHE B e R HAb AR BRI 2 51
REB R E o FE R BB R A
F169ER > A B & A AR A0 A B SR 20 i
ARG R ARG > A H LAKEE B iR
23 -

IR e 1798 - AL AR
N BB T+ o rle e T A B A - SR A
B HCE YR SE 169 P REE B T EE
LA RS > AR AT
G B 52 51 {6 HEE O E A1 2 510 A IR A B
E (M HEA) AR E B A 251

B T TN B RN B SR A > 7 s B 5
o HE QISR 168 R BUR B A s G Rt RIS 17
SR A AR R EOR > AR ATEOR A
MNHESBAKEHERMERR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by

HKEFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$15,700,000 as disclosed in note 32. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$44,000 and refundable
rental deposits received of HK$112,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKEFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted
to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance lease
payments.

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.
Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS
16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained profits without
restating comparative information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties that are measured at fair values,
as explained in accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and

services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in

use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its

entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement

date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out

below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:
*  has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of

control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the

relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the

customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

petforms; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

Rk R —

SL% PO A A Was (B B8 B a2 8
A% SCE R 7 9 S0 5 3 MR S 5B
WAz

AR A i T S o R RIS 1S BE o AR AR R
(BRE) S8 U % BRI (RIS B 5 B 40 5]
A AR B B B o SRS B 428 1 M | RS T
J5 i) FERE U AR o

VB # FAL 4 — TR B A IR B (B — &
i BUIR B ) B — & B K B[] B9 B fe B A B
&7

s 75 5 DAR e rp — SRR J 45 o W s S
RS - T 2 ) 2 25 A R 40 24T 19 52 A
A 52 T Ry ]

o RFAAGE E B AR [R] I U5 E K R
A 4 ] A6 P 4 04 B A 28

o REEREARNE KR THE R AL
V] B 46 B 2 o ) R E 5 R

« AEENBERXRAEHAELEEAE
RRE I E > T A SR B A 52 AT
HEWOR 24 C B %) 3023 B9 K08 ©

R Wi R I B 5 A T T o R A £
HERFRERD. o

2018 Annual Report 4£E#i% 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IFFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
— continued

The revenue of the Group arising from sales of
jewellery product is generally recognised at a point in
time when customer acceptance has been obtained,
which is the point of time when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of these products and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of these

products.

The revenue of the Group arising from property
development in the ordinary course of business is
recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the respective properties.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold in the normal course of

business and net of discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s

activities, as described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018) — continued

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which

time all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods

sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of

the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than land
and buildings, held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or fair value to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
the year, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant prepaid
lease payments) at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve

will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part of
the costs of buildings under construction. Buildings
under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary
for them to be capable of operating in the manner

intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment pI‘OpCl’tiCS are pI‘OpCl‘tiCS held to earn

rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IFFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress mainly comprises raw materials and
direct labour. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs relating to the
development of the properties include land cost,
construction cost, borrowing costs and other direct

development expenditure.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all anticipated costs to be incurred in

marketing and selling.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified under current assets and are stated at the

lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the year, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is

material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured

reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W s e Bk

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since
1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of financial assets or
financial liabilities and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9

in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash

flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-

impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
55 I B R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IFFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKEFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, bank
balances and deposits). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months

after the reporting date.

Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost

or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk

has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit

rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit

default swap prices for the debtor;

*  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) — continued

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk — continued

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

114 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 42 [H] |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 7]

Rk R — 4

WA B T H —
WA B B —

B B B M (TR 1E B At 2.2 i
1 3L JEE I B v Y 5 R A 9%
%) — 4

(i) fFEREBKE T -

. BT\ 408 5 3 2 B % T 300 K g
e

o REBARIEE - P
145 80 T 1 BT KA RS2 -
SR B AT SL RO BT 0 B
PIEE PN LK

AN iy b 7 A A SR AT > i S A AT R
W 30 H > A 4R B A R E 5 B
JE\ B B A0 4 A SR LA B R WE £ T > BR
JEAE A A 2 AT R G R
s Bl o BRI o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally

understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes

past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) — continued

(ii)

116 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 42 [H] |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 7]

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any

collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) — continued

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or

more events of default that have a detrimental

impact on the estimated future cash flows of

that financial asset have occurred. Evidence

that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer

or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or

past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that

the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial

difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon

application HKFRS 9 with transitions in

accordance with note 2) — continued

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is
no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over three years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon
application HKFRS 9 with transitions in
accordance with note 2) — continued

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of

default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a

loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
55 I B R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IFFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are mainly loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting

policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivable when the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each year. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency

in interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective

interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

— continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the
impairment loss is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the group
entities are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the group entities are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
550 W R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HE20184F12H31 H IEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the year, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. The recoverable amount of tangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment on tangible assets — continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

under that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the

fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of each year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each year and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment

property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the year, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign

operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of

the relevant lease.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and

sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires

or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next twelve months, are

described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Provision of ECL for trade receivables
(upon application of HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar credit risk characteristic.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable, and available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition,
certain balances of trade receivables and those credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 38 and 21

respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$104,867,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,858,000.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1

January 2018)

The Group made allowance for doubtful debts based
on an assessment on the recoverability of trade
receivables. In determining whether an allowance
for doubtful debts is required, the Group took
into consideration of the customers’ credit history,
settlement patterns, subsequent settlements and aging
analysis of the trade receivables. Where the expectation
of the recoverability of trade receivables was different
from the original estimate, such difference would
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables and
allowance for doubtful debts in the period which
such estimate had changed. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$88,204,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$887,000.
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#5887,000% 7T)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Allowances of inventories — finished goods

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimation
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. These
estimates are based on the current market conditions,
estimated selling prices of the finished goods,
movement, and subsequent sales of the finished goods.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
these factors. The Group will reassess the estimation
at the end of each year. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of finished goods is HK$105,695,000
(2017: HK$118,337,000).

Impairment assessment of properties under
development for sale and properties held
for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group’s properties under development for sale
and properties held for sale, which are situated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
reference to current market environment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net
realisable value. Appropriate write-down for estimated
irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss
when the net realisable value is below cost. The
estimates of net realisable value are determined based
on the evidence available at the time the estimates
are made, and the amounts of the properties under
development for sale and properties held for sale are
expected to realise or recover. Actual realised amount
may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or
an increase in the net realisable value of the properties
under development for sale and properties held for sale
and additional write-down or reversal of write-down
previously recognised may be required.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of the properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale are HK$257,369,000 (2017:
HK$186,397,000) and HK$121,974,000 (2017: nil),

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Fair value of investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The Group
has a designated team to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements. In estimating the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent they are
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of
the Group’s investment properties. At the end of the
reporting period, management works closely with the
independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in determining the fair value of the

Group’s investment properties is disclosed in note 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of Investment
properties was HK$9,563,000 (2017: nil).

4.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

Al vt A 99 9 X AR Y R 5 — 4

BREWMEZ A~ FE

A 42 [ 0 00 B 2 DA V- R DA B i
HZ M e AEEMA WK > DIEE
E R E DT B WA R AR EL
FAH o 1EAlREASSE B BCE W) SE M T E R
A S ] o8 1) T AR A5 Y T 455 T BB R o 30
M AR R > A Z IS B
T S A {6 T AR 4R T B BB W) S EAT
A o RS R > 4 B g B 5L & B
EVEMEME DI SF > e A TER R
0 A R 9 B L A g o (A
(ER AT AREEE) - & AN 7S
JEUA o A BH R A 4R B BUE Y S -F(E BT A
FEAE J7 i o 25 Bt A B I ORI B 1645

R20184E12A31H > B EWEZ N FHEHE
9,563,000%% JC (20174F : 4##) o
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12H31 H L4

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wik Ko EH
INFORMATION
Revenue represents amounts received and receivable Wiz i e A T R A R Y B B BT BR R E S (411BR
for the sales of fine jewellery products net of discounts Prin SR 8) R EHE WM O S B A58 -

and returns and sales of properties during both years.

Information reported to the executive directors of the AL R 3 TE K Al 20 B8 2R B 1] A A R B

Company, being the chief operating decision maker TEE (M EZEERRE A ([ EEEERE

(“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation AND)) it 2 BB T iR S R R 2

and assessment of segment performance focuses on the W 4 % v A o

revenues and profits from different types of business

divisions.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under PRI » AR 358 A ol B 5 A o ) 25808 > A 4R

HKEFRS 8 are as follows: 2 K88 K ] o A E

(i) Manufacturing and sales of jewellery products (i) WWERHEREEMEHERE R
business represents manufacturing and sales of HETREE M B HER M
jewellery products including rings, earrings, B~ Fol - THPE R T8 ([ RE NG
pendants, bangles, necklaces and bracelets TREEM]) o
(“Manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products”).

(ii) Property development business represents the (i) WIRBIREFIEMAE M 246 2
development and sales of properties for the L IH H B KB (T
Group’s integrated and comprehensive industry B o

park project (“Property development”).

136 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 42 [H] |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

revenue and results by operating and reportable

segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

5. Wode Koy i B OB — 4

OB 8 L&V ES

5 J 1% KE 8 R nl 4k o BB o 2 A
LV ES ViR

B E20184F12H31 H 1L 4E &

Manufacturing

and sales of

jewellery Property
products development Consolidated
B35 R
o 8 Bk B R W 3k 9% e A
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#t T T# T
Segment revenue 73 HR s i
External sales G 8 314,306 207,699 522,005
Segment results 43 T 3 4 35,408 82,545 117,953
Unallocated corporate income A o3 Wit AR SE IR 141
Unallocated corporate expenses A 73 il 4> 3 B 32 (15,248)
Finance costs I %5 2 A (1,044)
Profit before taxation R o 11 Vi A1) 101,802
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A I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

(a) Segment revenue and results —
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2017

5. Wi B o i %R — 4

(a) 73R aE M S A — A

#E20174F12H31 H IE4E

Manufacturing

and sales of

jewellery Property
products development Consolidated
R R
S5 TR E ES 9 BaE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T# T T#IT T# T
Segment revenue 73 B UK i
External sales SR $H 352,043 - 352,043
Segment results AT 3 A 70,075 (2,561) 67,514
Unallocated corporate income RO BC AR WA 146
Unallocated corporate expenses oA 73 it 4> 3 Bl 52 (12,863)
Finance costs 1 5 2 (1,005)
Profit before taxation ¥R ot 1 ¥ A1) 53,792

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment result
represents the profit earned or loss incurred
by each segment and hence is arrived at
without allocation of certain income and
expenses (including other income, general
and administrative expenses and finance
costs). This is the measure reported to the
CODM of the Company, for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W R

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IEFEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wtk Ko E R — &

INFORMATION - continued
(b) rEBE E R AME

5 J 1% KE 8 R nl 4k o BB o 2 A
A5 T 73 0 7 B oy W R AR AT

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s
segment assets and segment liabilities by
operating and reportable segment:

At 31 December 2018 R2018412H31H

Manufacturing

and sales of

jewellery Property
products development Consolidated
B3k K
8 Bk o B Wk B R i Ees
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T Tt
Assets B E
Segment assets I A 315,859 735,282 1,051,141
Deferred tax assets A ST B TH A 285
Unallocated corporate assets ENEAEEE 12,594
Consolidated assets HEEE 1,064,020
Liabilities AR
Segment liabilities i S=Ri 35,683 446,057 481,740
Taxation payable JRE i TE 22,482
Deferred tax liabilities AR LB IH & 866
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ko A fE 597
Consolidated liabilities HEBE 505,685
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B B Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

(b) Segment assets and liabilities —

continue

At 31 December 2017

5. Wi B o i %R — 4

(b) Jr#BE A MK ffH -4

#2017412H31H

Manufacturing

and sales of

=

H

jewellery Property
products development Consolidated
R5E K
S 5 TR 7 i 3953 5E
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT T T T U T
Assets E
Segment assets I E 319,767 245,435 565,202
Unallocated corporate assets ROBASEEE 21,600
Consolidated assets ARAEE 586,802
Liabilities =K
Segment liabilities oy R H R 49,563 5,441 55,004
Taxation payable JRE S8t 1A 9,875
Deferred tax liabilities I AL 3l T B £ 83
Unallocated corporate liabilities 7 43 Ei 4 3 8 & 892
Consolidated liabilities ARH A 65,854
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION - continued

(b) Segment assets and liabilities —
continued

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between

segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than deferred tax assets and

unallocated corporate assets.

= all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than taxation payable,
deferred tax liabilities and unallocated

corporate liabilities.

Manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products (revenue recognised at a point in
time)

For manufacturing and sales of jewellery products
to the wholesale market, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the wholesaler’s specific

location (upon delivery of goods).

Property development (revenue recognised
at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are not based on customer’s specifications.
Revenue from property developments is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed
property is transferred to customers, being at the point
that the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment

and collection of the consideration is probable.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

5. Wode Koy i B OB — 4

(b)

g wb & EE K £ — 4

W 0 S B B 4 W 43 L O
T %

- BREREBHEE LR AEE
A I BEYIS B E KB

i

- BRESBUE - REBIHARER
orBL Ak A AN > A BRI
(VR

O R B R T R 2 — I
&)

AR K 8 PR E O E I TG T
B o W i B il 1 A RS A AT
RIVES b o 288 2 41k 3 1 B R E M B (B
i 2L ) o

o 3k B B Ot B¢ — Ihg B0 Tl e i
it )
MMEYEBREF T LN BHMS
B R BLE AR BR A 6N TR SRR S
TR o W) HE R i i Y R T W) 36
W TEF R R MEF
5 3% T4 S Y J28 o RE T AR 4 9 9 AT
e BB At 3k 2 B Ry M R % T e i B A
f14 Ik ] 86
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers, based on location of

delivery to customers is as follows:

W ik B o3 8 2 B — 4

Hb [e R

A AP AR 15 1 7 5 S ARt B
LU

2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T o0

Revenue I £
— Hong Kong — & 208,743 208,591
— Dubai — M 103,837 142,348
- PRC — 209,425 1,104
522,005 352,043

No individual customer contributes revenue which
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total

revenue during both years.

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other
than deferred tax assets) by their physical geographical

location is as follows:

W 4E B AR A % P A AR Uk 25
AR 4 [ A 251096 A L o

A 4 18 JF U B & R OO A8 B TH R BR
AN e LR I b B4 ) 4 09 43 b
T

2018 2017
20184F 20174

HK$°000 HK$’000

T oo T T

Hong Kong s 1,280 2,803
PRC [ 153,943 46,713
Dubai A FE 320 479
155,543 49,995
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&5 W R i
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
BE2018F12H31 H IE4FE
OTHER INCOME 6. JfbBA
2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 1,881 330
Scrap sales JBE ) Y 258 680
Rental income FH 4 0 A 32 -
Others HoAth 445 258
2,616 1,263
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Ul B % B i 4
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T
Written off of property, WS 2 - MR
plant and equipment V& (889) -
Impairment loss recognised & o REWL R I 2
on trade receivables % e 5 ok (L s 48 (823) -
Reversal of allowances for doubtful debts I R 5% A 35 ) - 1,093
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) [fE Sh 0k %5 (5 15 15 %8 352 (128)
(1,360) 965
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A I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WHEM

2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Interest on other borrowing A A 3R B - 293
Interest on bank loans SRAT S 11,673 712

Less: Amount capitalised in the B AEREERAZ
cost of qualifying assets EAA %A (7,920) -
3,753 1,005

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on

the general borrowing pool and were calculated by

applying a capitalisation rate of 5.44% per annum to

expenditure on qualifying assets.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

9. B BL i % A

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T oo THs T
Profit before taxation has been arrived o 6 AT da ) A 40 BR T 81 A TEAR
at after charging: B
Depreciation g
— cost of goods sold — O & MR 537 953
— general and administrative expenses —— M B AT B BH 2 1,730 1,697
— selling and distributed costs — 88 I 43 B LA 15 -
Total depreciation P8 2,282 2,650
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 4 (K EE10)
— fees — 4 636 924
— salaries and other benefits — Fr 4 S H A A A 6,500 6,500
— equity-settled share option expense — AR 45 0 T e W B 2 1,049 15152
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — AR I ) 4t 54 54
8,239 8,630
Other staffs salaries and other benefits (note)  HoAth & T.35 4 &
Al A A (R 3E) 22,008 13,262
Other staff’s equity-settled HoAth B Ty LA 45 5
share option expense i FBCHRE B S 4,471 5,092
Other staff’s retirement benefits HoAth & T 3R R AR
scheme contributions S 4t 2k 2,382 2,580
Total staff costs B TR A K3 37,100 29,564
Auditor’s remuneration % B il P 45 1,800 1,800
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses Al R 2% Bl S A A7 B8 LA
(included in cost of goods sold) (FFA B & & 0 A) 354,020 258,175
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented AE LD EL KW ZE - WE
premises and property, plant and equipment Kk ffff #Y K8 5 A A 4 7,304 6,349
Release of prepaid lease payments oA A B K I 43 [ 286 -

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, provision B 5E -

on staff benefits for previous years included in

accruals and other payables amounting approximately
Renminbi (“RMB”) 14,548,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,316,000) has been reversed
as the directors of the Company considered that

crystallisation of such provision as a liability was

remote.

B E20174E12H31 H I FEHIH - H R A
N ) R A R R IE S L Al A5 3K
THZ A4 B T AR A e 4 N (T A
W 1) 14,548,0000C (41 % 1A £116,316,000
Won) B4 AR e B E A R
M o
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B3 S5 IR R B ik

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#E20184F 12 31 H ILARFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. W 4
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the A TR 4 B B A B RE A AR N B K R E AT
directors and the chief executive of the Company BN B W s e

during both years are as follows:

Retirement
Salaries Equity-settled benefits
and other  share option scheme
Fees benefits expense  contributions Total
Bak DERER  BKEM
e A WBHERZ  EREEK it

HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HKS$'000
Ti#gn Tt Tt Titn Ti#n

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B22018412H31 H L4

Executive directors: oS

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (note (7)) e A (W3R - 3,500 215 18 3,733
Ms. Shek Mei Chun AEBL L = 1,500 201 18 1,719
Mr. Chung Chi Keung HEREE = 1,500 201 18 1,719

Independent non-executive directors: Bk ufES

Mr. Fan Chor Ho it ek 192 - 144 - 336
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai FEPSE 192 . 144 - 336
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick R 192 - 144 - 336
Mr. He Ding Ding (note (ii)) BT T (M)
(appointed on 1 March 2017 and (1A20174F3H 1 HERAT
resigned on 1 March 2018) Jit2018%3 A 1 H G ) 60 - - - 60
636 6,500 1,049 54 8,239
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5 W R Bk
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
#WE2018%F12H31 H (L4
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. 3 3¢ 9 4 — &
— continued
Retirement
Salaries  Equity-settled benefits
and other  share option scheme
Fees benefits expense  contributions Total
Hak  MlEsgE R
% HARF W RERE X FiE N A5t

HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
ikt Tk T i T

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12H31H 1HE

Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (note (i)) MM e (HREE (i) - 3,500 208 18 3,726
Ms. Shek Mei Chun hEB Lt - 1,500 194 18 1,712
Mr. Chung Chi Keung E L it - 1,500 194 18 1,712
Non-executive director: IO ES:
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus RIEERE

(resigned on 1 March 2017) (R20174E3 A 1 H BHE) 48 - = = 48

Independent non-executive directors: BuknEs:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho bR R P 192 L 139 = 331
M. Li Cheuk Wai ZEBIEE 192 — 139 = 331
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick R EE 192 = 139 - 331
M:r. He Ding Ding (note (ii)) BT T4 (ki)
(appointed on 1 March 2017 and (20173 H 1 HEZAT
resigned on 1 March 2018) 201843 H 1 H BHL) 300 = 139 - 439
924 6,500 1,152 54 8,630

2018 Annual Report 4EJiEd 147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
550 W R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HE20184F12H31 H IEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

— continued

Notes:

(i) Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is also Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
includes those for services rendered by him as Chief
Executive.

(i)  Mr. He Ding Ding has resigned as the independent
non-executive director and was appointed as the
deputy chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 1 March 2018.

(iii) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of the non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included 3 (2017:
3) directors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018. Details of whose emoluments are
included above. The emoluments of the remaining

highest paid individuals are as follows:

10. 3 3¢ 1 4 — &

() LA REA N AATERAR Bl A
B I 45 5 0 4% FCAR 20 A7 AR A 4R 10 A s
PN < -

() T TSR OB L IR AT S
St 2 AF: 7 A 24 R B AT BUAR > H12018%4F3
H1HEAER -

(i) b SO AT A P < R R S AR
O A B A AR T B S B AR B o b SO
N IR AT S OB L IR AT S e
TS AR By AR ) SR LR o

EIR0A T DN~

HE20184F12H31 H I4EE » Lfidm i A
AR A EE (20174F 1 =A%) o I
Pl b 7 S S o L i 3 A 170 S M
T

2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Employees 3=
— salaries and other benefits — 3 & M HAth 45 A1 1,345 1,274
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — B RAE I ) K 26 3
1,371 1,307
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

22018412731 H ILAFE
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. % 55 I 4 — &
— continued
Five highest paid individuals — continued T A g5 v B N — A
Their emoluments were within the following bands: I F- DA 5 2 ) 7
2018 2017
20184 20174F
Number of Number of
employees employees
1PN & B A%
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % %1,000,000% 7T 2 2
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the T T8 47 2 S ) > A S T B e 1o A 0 ) R
Group to the directors of the Company or the five B A AL (BRI HE KE B) St
highest paid individuals (including directors and B 22 I A A S B SO A A 5 5 11 5 )
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining SRR A o P R 1 7 B U ) o A 0
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None FE WA fo 387 o
of the directors have waived any emoluments during
both years.
11. TAXATION 11. BLH
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#u T# T
The taxation charge comprises: Tl JH 3 M AL A
Hong Kong Profits Tax F WA 5B
— Current year — AR 2,008 4,478
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) Fp B A 2 i A5 B
(43 Fr i3 1)
— Current year — ARAE 17,250 468
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) PR L 8 (R
(It Ho 38 {E 5 1) 11,340 —
30,598 4,946
Deferred tax (credit) charge (note 27) 8 SE B TE (HE 4 2 (B 5E27) (368) 771
30,230 5,717
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

11. TAXATION - continued 11. BEHE — 4

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong
Kong profits tax is calculated of 8.25% on the first
HKS$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

The Group is engaged in manufacturing of fine
jewellery products through processing factories in
the PRC under contract processing arrangement.
Accordingly, under such 50:50 onshore/offshore
arrangement between the Group and the processing
factories, certain profits of the Group are not taxable
under Hong Kong Profits Tax during both years.
In addition, the processing factories of the Group
is subject to the PRC EIT at a rate of 25% on the
deemed profit generated in the PRC.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. LAT has been levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, represented by the excess of sales proceeds
of properties over prescribed direct costs. Prescribed
direct costs are defined to include costs of land,
development and construction costs, as well as certain
costs relating to the property development. According
to the State Administration of Taxation’s official
circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally upon
sales of the properties, followed by final ascertainment
of the gain at the completion of the properties
development.
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11. TAXATION - continued

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the

profit before taxation per the consolidated statement

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 45 Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

11. BLIH — 5

A R B I S R B AR 48
2N BR B A i A B BRI R

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

#HZE20184F12H31H IHFEE

B it B A 2 TR 4

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$’000
T 0 T T
Profit before taxation I Bt 1T Yt ) 101,802 DN,
Tax at the applicable income tax rate i F T 13 B %16.5%
at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) B BLIE (20174F © 16.5%) 16,797 8,876
Tax effect of expenses not deductible S A] F0 B B 52
for tax purposes B 5 1,162 3,698
Tax effect of income not taxable 178 ﬁﬁqﬁ)\
for tax purposes ) ol 75 5 2 (464) (2,952)
Effect of profit under 50:50 arrangement 50 : SOKT#T B Y5 ) e 2 (1,816) (4,373)
Tax effect of different tax rates A FR B A g R A ] 2
of subsidiaries operating in the PRC AR B 2 2 5 2 5,542 -
PRC LAT Hh B 1 b 1 (B 11,340 -
Tax effect of PRC LAT recognition il 58 H ii’@.iﬁﬁéi—ﬁ
resulting a reduction in income tax JIT A5 2D 2 S s 2 (1,871) -
Tax effect of two tiered profits tax rate regime Al 15 Bl i #% il B 2% il i
BB B (165) -
Others HoAt (295) 468
Taxation charge for the year A TR B JE S 30,230 5,717
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7, %N
& B B IR R Bk
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE
12. DIVIDEND 12. BB
2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T 0
Dividends recognised as distribution FENE MR AT IRZ A
during the year:
Interim dividend for 2018 of HK0.01 20184 /1 3 B B A 120,01 35 T
(2017: HKO0.01) per share (20174F : 0.01%570) 13,500 13,500
Final dividend for 2017 of HK0.01 20174 K W B B A 120,015 o0
(2016: HK0.03) per share (20164F : 0.03%57T) 13,500 13,500
27,000 27,000

The directors proposed to declare a final dividend of
HK$0.01 per share, totalling HK$13,500,000 and
a special dividend of HK$0.02 per share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2018, totalling
HK$27,000,000, in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018, to be paid to the shareholders whose
names appear on the Company’s register of members
on 6 June 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A 5 e B e

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

BE2018F12H31 H IE4FE
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 5B &
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per AN T A N JRE AL g 1 i A % 0 2 R T AR
share attributable to owners of the Company is based £ IR S
on the following data:
2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
Tt T T
Profit for the year attributable to AN F A AL AR A
owners of the Company and T A Sk wE A A i S A
earnings for the purposes of calculating T v M 2
basic and diluted earnings per share 55,270 48,843

Number of shares

Ji& 3 B H
’000 000
T T
Weighted average number of ordinary RO R A )
shares for the purpose of calculating 28 i HE T 24 B
basic earnings per share (note) (Fff &%) 1,350,000 1,350,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BT B e
Share-based payments DA 3 32 A5k 3k 0E 18,183 14,979
Weighted average number of ordinary hwT B R 4 v 2 A
shares for the purpose of calculating 7 I HE ST 34 B
diluted earnings per share 1,368,183 1,364,979
Note: Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders WHRE © AREEA LR 20174F9 A 12H BT 2
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting SBORCRERI K fr L 2 PRk 5 - AR K
held on 12 September 2017, every one issued and A R IR T{E0.0 19 7T 2 B 34T RoR 8547
unissued existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in BLAT 0 I 0 B 4R A B = I R {E =
the share capital of the Company was subdivided into oy A Z IR ey (PR D) -
three subdivided shares of one third Hong Kong cent etk I3 M E 22017489 H 13 H A3
each (the “Share Subdivision”). The Share Subdivision
became effective on 13 September 2017.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for 7 = A O Nl = o Tl L 1
the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share BB 2017459 H 13 H 22 B4 YR 40 4F 3

has been adjusted for the Share Subdivision on 13 % o

September 2017.
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& B B IR R Bk
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H L4

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y13E ~ W5 B a M
EQUIPMENT
Plant Furniture
and and Motor Construction
machinery fixtures vehicles Moulds  in progress Total
W7 R K
e *E HofE B TR Wt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tl SR T T T
Year ended 31 December #F20184£12H31H
2018 IR A
At 1 January 2018 2018414 1H
Cost A 5,037 17,527 3,668 1,284 23,027 50,543
Accumulated depreciation A5 (4,758) (13,844) (2,293) (1,245) - (22,140)
Exchange realignment [ 5o, 3 = 18 45 - 518 581
Net book amount HE T (i 279 3,701 1,420 39 23,545 28,984
At 1 January 2018 1#20184E 1A 1H 279 3,701 1,420 39 23,545 28,984
Additions NE 337 1,158 = = 114,556 116,051
Written off i = (850) = 39) = (889)
Surplus on revaluation L UEXISLIE Y
arising from transfer to EEZ BB
investment properties - - - - 3,601 3,601
Transfer to investment t’;*z%& g%%
properties - - - - (9,049) (9,049)
Depreciation bR (252) (1,619) (411) = = (2,282)
Exchange realignment HE . 7 2 - (59) (15) - (5,269) (5,343)
At 31 December 2018 *2018412H31H 364 2,331 994 = 127,384 131,073
At 31 December 2018 #2018412H31H
Cost A 5,374 13,658 3,704 1,141 132,653 156,530
Accumulated depreciation iR (5,010) (11,268) (2,695) (1,141) = (20,114)
Exchange realignment HE 5% 7 % - (59) (15) - (5,269) (5,343)
At 31 December 2018 #20184£12H31H 364 2,331 994 L. 127,384 131,073
Representing: i :
Cost WA 364 2,331 994 - 127,384 131,073
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT - continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

14. Y3 ~ W55 Be B Ml — 4

Plant Furniture
and and Motor Construction
machinery fixtures vehicles Moulds in progress Total
WE RN REREE et A ERIHE A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T THT T T T THT
Year ended 31 December #E2017412H31H
2017 I35
At 1 January 2017 20174 1A 1H
Cost A 5,032 16,448 2,848 1,238 - 25,566
Accumulated depreciation LR (4,379) (11,978) (1,918) (1,215) = (19,490)
Net book amount AT 5 E 653 4,470 930 23 - 6,076
At 1 January 2017 201741 1H 653 4,470 930 23 = 6,076
Additions NE 5 1,079 820 46 48,711 50,661
Transfer from prepaid WA B R
lease payments - - - = 1,557 1,557
Transfer to properties under R B
development for sale FEmE - - - . (27,241) (27,241)
Depreciation & (379) (1,866) (375) (30) = (2,650)
Exchange realignment 1 3 7 2 - 18 45 - 518 581
At 31 December 2017 201741231 H 279 3,701 1,420 39 23,545 28,984
At 31 December 2017 2017412 31H
Cost A 5,037 17,527 3,668 1,284 23,027 50,543
Accumulated depreciation EHEiR (4,758) (13,844) (2,293) (1,245) 2 (22,140)
Exchange realignment i 54 5 % = 18 45 - 518 581
At 31 December 2017 #2017 12A31H 279 3,701 1,420 39 23,545 28,984
Representing: % :
Cost A 279 3,701 1,420 39 23,545 28,984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
550 W R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. o2& ~ W Be e i —
EQUIPMENT - continued
Included in construction in progress was borrowing TE 2 TR A6 & AL A5 &R A 1,477,000 J6
costs capitalised of HK$1,477,000 (2017: nil). (20174F : 4%) o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is Y2~ W KRR T8 SR B AREENE
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate DA A ELAG 5510 ) 4 1A 4 40 L B AR B B &
their cost or fair value to their residual values over FIEREMEWM T ¢

their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and machinery 20% per annum T % B BH20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% per annum AR e 46 B F4E20%
Motor vehicles 20% per annum K H4£20%
Moulds 30% per annum B H4E30%
£
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. BUMHLECK B
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T# T

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: 7442 [ 2 78 A5 L & 7K SH AL 45 -

Leasehold land in the PRC A H (B 2 A B il
Non-current asset FEREE = 14,863 16,890
Current asset B & E 316 351

15,179 17,241
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

16. #&W¥E

HK$’000
T

FAIR VALUE
At 1 January 2018

/NS
20181 H1H _

Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note) WS H W)~ WS S (B EE) 9,049
Transfer from prepaid lease payments (note) R | VA A AR E (B ) 885
Exchange realignment [ifE 54, o] (371)
At 31 December 2018 R20184F12 31 H 9,563

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
changed the use of certain of its property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments and has leased
them to independent third parties for rental income.
Upon the transfer to investment properties, these
properties were revalued with a gain on revaluation of
approximately HK$3,601,000. This amount net of the
corresponding to deferred tax liability of approximately
HK$900,000 has been credited to property revaluation

reserve.

All of the Group’s properties held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment

properties and measured using the fair value model.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2018, the date of transfer from property,
plant and equipment/and prepaid lease payments
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on the respective dates by APAC Asset Valuation
and Consulting Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer. APAC Asset Valuation and
Consulting Limited has appropriate qualifications and
experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant

locations.

Bk © B E2018F12H31 H IEFE > AL E
Wt T2 R Rk DA B AN AR R
HZMHH - e TELE =N
DIBRIRAL A o R B R E YR - %
T EAL > EAL IR £ 293,601,000
TG A B 4 B A 10 B3R AR A 4 4 o TE & i
#1900,000% LA B 5 AW 2 AL b A

A4 B AR B AR A B R A DU & B A
BERNZ A EHC O BRIRA E
ZE IS AN L S

AAE B E Y 2E 20184 F 1231 H (R4
2 RS B, A R TE A AR B R S RS 2
H 1) 2 2 P-(E T AR 45 18 3 A s B2 A
Il AR A B A AR P A BR S mD RS AR B H
AT 2 Ak (AT o HEOK B A A B i R A PR
N ) A AH BE B 2 W) A E T A S
G I BB
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A I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H L4

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

— continued

The fair value of certain investment properties located
in the PRC is determined by using income approach.
The income approach is calculated by capitalising the

16. #:& W ¥ — &

AL B 2 2 T BEE W3 2 o FE T 3R i
AERE - WA T BRA A Z el
AL o 073 AT AT A AR B WS A A R 1

rental income derived from the existing tenancies with HErHE -
due provision for any reversionary income potential.
Valuation techniques Significant
Investment properties Fait value Fair value and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REmE AFE APEES  EERREERARR EAATEZEANRE R
2018 2017

20185 20175
HK$000  HK$000

T#n  T#n
Residential properties 9,563 - Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account  The higher the term yield,
in the PRC #3% - term yield of yield generated by market  the lower the fair value
(e oA~ e Bl average selling price and the

market average rental from e ATE
comparable properties and i

adjustment to reflect the

conditions of the properties,

which is ranged from 2.0%

t0 2.5%

T B RUEHE
WEZ TG T ER R
BT e RS 2 I
BB Ak Bt f
2B ATF20%%2.5%

- teversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into ~ The higher the

There is no transfer into or out of Level 3 during year
ended 31 December 2018.

~fifil account of yield generated by reversionary yield, the
market average selling price ~ lower the fair value
and the market average rental
from comparable properties A » AF(H
and adjustment to reflect i
the risk associated with the
future rental, which is ranged
from 2.1% to 3%

sl B RTE
EZ TR TYERR
A TS s 2
N EIUS Y i |
BT (et 2 % > AT
2.1%%3%

HE2018F12H31 H 1L F A > 5535107 i A
o o
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B 45 Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

22018412731 H ILAFE
17. DEPOSITS 17. &

2018 2017
2018%F 20174F
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#n TH#T

The Group’s deposits comprise: ALE B 2 e

Deposit paid for acquisition of an equity MEERA R EZ

investment (note) B A4 (B aE) - 3,369
Rental deposits T4 4% & 44 752
44 4,121

Note: The amount represented a refundable deposit

paid for acquisition of 5% equity interest in a
private company incorporated in the PRC for a
jewellery complex project, with a consideration of
RMB2,850,000 (equivalent to HK$3,369,000).
The amount was refunded during the year ended 31

WESE A7 B SRS it — SR B AR5 T B i — ]

A R B MBS 2 FA N ] 2 59 % HE 2
CAT AR 4 AE 25 A R 2,850,000
JG (123,369,000 70) © 47 B ZRIE A
F20184F12 A 31 H 1 4F B £ R 5] o

December 2018.

18. INVENTORIES 18. f# 1%
2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Tt T-#E 5
Raw materials JE AL R 51,764 50,255
Work in progress TE B4 9,574 11,364
Finished goods B 105,695 118,337
167,033 179,956
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&5 W s e Bk

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

19. PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

19. FRBPFFEWE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T o

At 1 January W1ATH 186,397 -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B [ 92 ~ 5 I 5% - 27,241
Transfer from prepaid lease payments B TE AR B AOA - 107,909
Additions A 326,736 42,687
Borrowing costs capitalised EAALAE B A 6,443 -
Transfer to properties held for sale A B RE B Y (249,518) -
Exchange realignment [fE b7, 34 4% (12,689) 8,560
At 31 December JR12H31H 257,369 186,397

On 13 January 2017, the Group entered into an
agreement with Jiangmen City Yingtuo Real Estate
Planning Co., Ltd. (“Jiangmen Yingtuo”) for the
formation of a PRC subsidiary which 70% interest
would be held by the Group and 30% interest held by
Jiangmen Yingtuo. On 15 February 2017, the Group
and Jiangmen Yingtuo won the bidding for land use
right of a land located at east of Foshan 1st Ring Road
South Extension and south of Lunjiao Dachong River,
Lunjiao Shilong Industrial Zone, Shunde District,
Foshan, Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Land”).
On 21 September 2017, the Group has revised the
development plan on the land (the “Revised Plan”)
from an own-use factory space to an integrated
and comprehensive industry park for fine jewellery
exhibitions, and planned to sell a portion of the factory
space as well as a portion of ancillary facilities. These
relevant amounts were transferred from property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments to

properties under development for sale in 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W R

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

22018412731 H ILAFE
20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20. F5 40 i A5 ) 3
2018 2017
2018%F 20174F
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#u T#T
Properties held for sale FefE i &9 2 121,974 =
The properties for sale were located in the PRC. FrEW AR B o TH A AR AR
Properties for sale which are expected to be recovered + AW A A% B 2 S 3 R T B
in more than twelve months after the end of the YA o TR TE I I A 4R B IE AR T
reporting period are classified under current assets B -
as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s normal
operating cycle.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, properties BE20184F 1231 H ILFEHIM - MR
held for sale with carrying amount of approximately B #7122,826,000% T Z FAE I BEW D
HK$122,826,000 were sold to third parties. HETHE=T5 -

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B 5 B I i HE Bk M

2018 2017

20184 20174F

HK$’000 HK$000

T 0 TIo

Trade receivables E 5y e K IH 106,725 89,091
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W R AR (1,858) (887)

104,867 88,204

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HC At B iR~ B SROE

FRT 4 38,519 22,423

143,386 110,627
The following is an analysis of trade receivable by age T £ 515 MWk T MR 2 O3 AT - AR
net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based PRELE [ Wiras AR HAIA A (9 88 5% F 0 K dm

on the invoice date, which approximates the respective BRR AR A 2 51 -

revenue recognition dates.
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550 W R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B 5 B I i HE ek Ve — 4

— continued
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# 7t T# T
0 — 30 days 0%£30H 41,983 27,052
31 L 60 days 31%F60H 16,252 14,153
61 — 180 days 617180 H 36,692 40,213
181 — 365 days 181%365 H 7,986 5,255
Over 1 year —4EDLE 1,954 1,531
104,867 88,204
The Group allows a credit period of up to 120 days to A SR S A HERfE SR Z 1200
its customers. A longer credit period may be granted to R B B B SR A X LA SRD Bk R B0 2% 5 R A
large or long established customers with good payment RS -
history.
Before accepting any new customers, the Group has B STATATH % 5 > A5 B SOA S R
an internal credit control system to assess the potential RS UGB EEFREHER > #F
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors EHCHREEBATEEEF NEER
has delegated management to be responsible for the G B > I HLE IAm AT % 5 LA R
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for o R E 5 BEWCGKIE S > #)50% (20174 ¢
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed 41%) S 6480 H0 (8 - R G AE AR 4R T
periodically. Approximately 50% (2017: 41%) of fO 15 S5 7 1 R 500 JE AT AL 2 R Gr 5 B0 -

the trade receivables, that are neither past due nor
impaired and they were assessed to be of good credit
rating attributable under the credit control system used

by the Group.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

— continued

The Group’s management takes into consideration
of customers’ credit history, settlement patterns,
subsequent settlements, customers’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions and aging analysis of
trade receivables in determining the recoverability of
the overdue trade receivables. The directors of the
Company considered that the concentration of credit
risk is limited due to customer base being large and

unrelated.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$52,030,000 which are past
due as at the reporting date. Included in the past due
balances of HK$17,308,000 has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default based
on good repayment records for those customers and
continuous business with the Group. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management of the Group to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is

updated.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
HK$52,453,000 were past due but not impaired. Such
receivables relate to a number of customers of which
substantial subsequent settlements were made. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security over these
balances. The aging analysis of these trade receivables

was as follows:

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

21. BB B b I ek o — 48

A I L A T 20 B ) R AR G T
W Il PR IRF - & 2% R P (5 R Bk - AT
A~ HESGRHI - FF MBI - H38]
fhf: % T 0 B AR 65K DL 2 T £l DA K ) M
WOHIH Z HRB 0 AT » AN R EHGE S > B
BEBRER RO A > 8 fFEE+ mA
PR

2018412431 H > A HE Iff {H /52,030,000
W2 R O R A SE [ 2 & ) G TR 45
ik > ZEFIER A B Ed ] o st A G
&5k 217,308,000 o £ 71 3 H 390 H 5% LA
b FLARE AR R P R A AL Bk Rl B A 4R [
FRAETS AR AR AN HAEE X o A B /0 B iy A
46 945 S TR B AR R o W ORIE TS B4 A
N2 BB A B & R o

201712 H31H M & 5 M fe 3k H s
52,453,000 G £, #6115 37 S ek (H - 5% 55 1
WEKIH B 2 2 % P AR > 65 B HAR AT
KA E ORI o A 42 [0 3 S0 5 A5 4T o] K47
i E B % G BRI KA o %55’ 5 B WG IR
1 B B8 40 AT 1 R
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B 5 B I i HE ek Ve — 4

— continued
2017
20174F
HK$’000
Tt
Overdue by: i
1 — 30 days 1£30H 16,975
31 — 60 days 31260 H 14,551
61 — 180 days 61%180H 19,030
181 — 365 days 181%365H 374
Over 1 year —4 Db 1,523
52,453
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade E 5 MW R T R BR B A s B G
receivables was as follows:
2017
20174
HK$’000
Tt
Balance at 1 January 1H1H &5 8% 1,980
Impairment loss recognised % e 5 ok (B s 48 1,029
Amounts recovered during the year A A E Wi [l 3k IE (2,122)
Balance at 31 December W12 H31 H 45 fig 887
Details of the impairment assessment of trade and BN E20184F12A31H IL4EEE 5
other receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 T At JEE s K T 2 A T Ay 2 A R

are stated in note 38. fff5E38 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 W R i
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L
22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22. AT AR BBl &
Included in bank balances and cash are the following DA DA BH 4 [ B 0 T R A L AR R B s T
amounts denominated in currency other than fHH SRR A SRATEE R B4
functional currency of the relevant group entities:
2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
Tt T
HKS$ T 27,372 25,359
United Arab Emiratis Dirham (“Dirham”) ] B% 2 ek a7 4Rk (T 28 7 48 ) 1,296 5,193
28,668 30,552
Bank balances and short-term bank deposits, which 20184124 31 H Y8R4T 4% B K S ISR AT A7
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranged from ARG E T B A 4 A1 $20.01%%£1.20%
0.01% to 1.20% per annum (2017: 0.01% to 1.20% (20174F « 4F F#20.01% £ 1.20%) w8, °

per annum) as at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H L4

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. U5 B I A HE A sk

2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Trade payables & 5 e At 318 102,626 15,202
Accruals and other payables JRE w3 T R At E A 3K 7,441 13,937
110,067 29,139
Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payable JRRE it K T e L At B A R T B A R B T

of staff salaries and benefits and provisions for certain

construction obligation.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

e < DA A DB T 58 R A -

TR AR R IR B 5L H W 2 51 (9 B2 5 HE A U Y

presented based on invoice date at the end of each SRU Y M N T
year:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T# T
0 — 60 days 0%60H 98,154 12,570
61 — 90 days 61290 H 1,802 1,508
Over 90 days 90 H DI | 2,670 1,124
102,626 15,202
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 45 Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IEFEE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES AR AR
2018 2017*
20184F 20174+
HK$°000 HK$000
T TH#: T
Property development ESdE 214,273 454

The amounts in the column are after the adjustments

from the application of HKFRS 15.

The contract liabilities at 1 January 2018 were fully

recognised as revenue in the current year.

The Group receives deposits from customers
when they sign the sale and purchase agreement.
The deposits give rise to contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction
period until the customer obtains control of the

completed property.

* L A 4 % . ol B ) 5 o B S A I A1
SEAE R -

20181 H1H Z G KB HE R AFE Z 2
il 58 2% WL i

A AR A 5 R B i e RO P iR o 1R
EWAREAEYEERIMER SN EA
B BEEF RS C 5 LY 3 il -

BANK LOANS 25. ST R
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7u TH#T
Bank loans are repayable as follows: SRAT B AR T 5 0 ] AE R
Within one year — 4N 16,735 25,580
After one year but within two years — E AR AH AR A 140,276 -
157,011 25,580
Less: Amount due within one year included in & : st A B AEZ
current liabilities — AR E A (16,735) (25,580)
Amount due after one year — AR B W EOH 140,276 -

The variable rate bank loans carry interest rate ranging
from 6% to 7.6% per annum (2017: from 6% to
6.5%) per annum. The loan is secured by property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and

investment properties (see note 34).

B SR AT B3R Y 4 4 R R A 6% £7.6%5T

2017$ 6%%6.5%) o B LAYIZE - MK
F&nﬂﬁ A AR I B £ ) S R A
(B 5E34)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& s R i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

26. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 26. <3011 B 4 95 i
PAYMENTS
The provision for long service payments is determined 1 ) IR % 4 B3 22 75 (R BN 4 A0 55 1 IR S
with reference to the employees’ remuneration and FEHREE -

their years of services.

2018 2017

20184F 20174F

HK$’000 HK$°000

T e T oo

At 1 January W1ATH 1,177 999
(Reversal of) provision for the year A (38 Im]) 93 4 (191) 178
At 31 December M12H31H 986 1,177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W R

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IEFEE

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 27. EHEBLIHE E (£ 1)

(LIABILITIES)
AR R AEBLE (505 GRER BB T -

The movements in deferred tax (liabilities) assets

during the year are as follows:

Fair value Provision Accelerated tax

change of for social  depreciation/

investment security accounting
property funds  depreciation Total

i

"EYEZ HERE  BEGTE
oy A5 B e ] it At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

T Tt T T

At 1 January 2017 201741 H 1A a 1,334 (646) 688
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (BEEMER) §FAE & = (1,334) 563 (771)
At 31 December 2017 #20174E12 31 H = = (83) (83)
Credit to profit or loss A = = 368 368
Charge to other comprehensive B 4R A H At 2 T

income for the year i % 40 bR (900) - - (900)
Exchange realignment [ a7 % 34 - - 34
At 31 December 2018 #20184F12 31 H (866) = 285 (581)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

PATR 5 1 B 5 HR 4R T 2 IR SE B JEL 45 B 2 70

balance for financial reporting purposes: #r
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Deferred tax assets 1 JiE B VE K 285 -
Deferred tax liabilities A5 AE B I B R (866) (83)
(581) (83)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H L4

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
(LIABILITIES) — continued

27. B SE B IR E (FLIH) — 4

Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect SIf R e 2R B Je 2 ) BT R 2 s T R A IR AR
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by the B Ui F51,784,000%5 70 (20174F « ) il 58 48
subsidiary in the PRC amounting of HK$51,784,000 SERLIA 5 [ 2 50 B A 45 B HE A 12 ) I IR
(2017: nil) as the directors are of the opinion that the FERR BEI R > LT IR I 2 AR W) S AR
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal A REAS & 43 ] o

of the temporary differences and it is probable that

the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. AR
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$’000
T 0 T4 I
Authorised: EE
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 3,000,000,000 8 &5 B T {5 —
one third Hong Kong cent each 2 — WAl 22 % 4 A% Ay
(2017: 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares (20174 : 3,000,000,000/%
of one third Hong Kong cent each) BREE =2z
8 1) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: CBAT KAUE -
1,350,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,350,000,000 % 5 i [Hi {E =
one third Hong Kong cent each o 2 — Al 2z 3 Ay
(2017: 1,350,000,000 ordinary shares (20174F : 1,350,000,000/8
of one third Hong Kong cent each) BREE =2 —E Az
3 B ) 4,500 4,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

The movements in the Company’s share capital for

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

. A — %

HE20174F 122018412 A31 H IL4EE » AR

the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 were as Al Z A B I T
follows:
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
WoE s H
HKS$’000
T# T
Authorised: HE
At 1 January 2017 #20174£1 710 1,000,000,000 10,000
Effect of Share Subdivision (note) B3 HR 4 2 52 28 (i) 2,000,000,000 =
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and R20174E12 31 H ~ 20184F1
31 December 2018 H1H 2018412 H31H 3,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: CEE AT REIE ¢
At 1 January 2017 R20174F1H1H 450,000,000 4,500
Effect of Share Subdivision (note) B3 R 4l 2 52 28 (i) 900,000,000 =
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and JA20174E12H31 H ~ 20184F
31 December 2018 1H1H &2018%12H31H 1,350,000,000 4,500

Note: Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 12 September 2017, every one issued and
unissued existing ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company was subdivided into
three subdivided shares of one third Hong Kong cent
each. The Share Subdivision became effective on 13
September 2017.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing

in issue in all respects.

B

MRAEAR S 7 B H R 20174F9 H 12 H 5247 2 i
FAEA R € B2 PR R o AN A A
A T (B 0.01 5 TG 2 B 384T SR BE AT LA
T B R R = R R = —
WAl 2 PRAN A o A PR AN E 22017479 H
13H AR -

B A 2 AT B4 B A 5 Th B Ry B %
A7 B0 == A ) S 4 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W s e Bk

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 29. DLIBe By S A w3k

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 14
December 2015, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share
Option Scheme was valid for a period of 10 years

commencing on 14 December 2015.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the

Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in the Company to eligible
participants (“Eligible Participants”) who contribute
to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Company. Eligible Participants include (i) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the
Group holds an equity interest; (ii) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iv) any customer of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (vi) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (vii) any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any other group or
classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development and

growth of the Group.
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HRIEAS LS ) 1R 20154E 12 H 14 H 48 3 (1 2 1 g
R AN AR AN BT B (1 R T
# 1) o WERCHERF B HH20154E12 H 14 H A 5T
BR104F o

S PBERE G ) 2 SR 4 A 4R ) T L i 23
S BFE T By DS SR A HE A S 1
ik (a=y i

R A5 PR M ) - AR A ) 3 A RE VR E 1]
RAFZREFRMAFNGEIFERERZ &
Eig 2 HE ([ G 8B ) %7 s A
N FEVRA 2 IR HE - BB EESE  OAR
]~ AT o] [ 2 T S PR A A T AR ] R B
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FEART 180 B 2 ) AT ] 45 6 2 AR AT JIOR
SRR H AR AR AT A0 B A A ST AT 4% B
B P88 1T 2 AT 25 2 AT AN & 5 (vid) AT AR
T 7 42 [ A AT ok ) /2 ) sl A ] 45 A A
N E E S ERERELERAL (HEA
T HAh) SRR 5 R (viid) B AR G & EH
5% 1l JEC At i 2 2 T 3 A £ A o R A
S (BE =N AT (R =W 2 (0 = X
& AR BB RI



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under this scheme and any other
share option schemes adopted by the Group shall not
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in

issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
this scheme and any other share option of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of passing of the relevant resolution

adopting this scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve-month
period, are subject to shareholders” approval in advance

in a general meeting.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

29. PAIBeAY S Ak B — 4

PRUHR 52 L 8] B A 42 0 T B Ak 2 A ] Al S
FBCHE T ) 4%t AR R AT B 2 T A7 8 B HE A AT
T w] REEEAT 2 B e R B H o AR A
N RN B 347 A 230% o

] AR 42 A Tt a8 R A 2 ) R B e R et 0 3
5% 2 W B ARE AR AT o8 i ] A % B B AT =2 B0y
A A L 5 1R 4 R R A L T B 2 A B
R E HE BT RO A Z10% °

BT ANFIER - BB BRI > 5
8 S5 AT fo] Wt 28 N 2 B PR AE > ZEAE R4S
T8 57 FE FUATE FHEUE o SO > FEATAT + AH
) INE S NN I S o e VAR S K
> B A AT (T N WA AEAT AT
IR i 225 8 AR A ] B 3R AT B 2.0.1% - S H:
HE (S E B 2 AA R RE ) B
5,000,000% 7C » ZH S AR R R & R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W s e Bk

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - 29. PLIB By 32 A 3k o —

continued

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors of
the Company, save that such period shall not be
more than ten years from the date of the offer of
the share options, subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme.
Unless otherwise determined by the directors at their
absolute discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held
before an option can be exercised. In addition, there is
no performance target which must be achieved before

any of the options can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors of the Company, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s

shares on the date of the offer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

A summary of movements of the outstanding share
options granted to and held by the Company’s

participants:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

29.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

DB A 32 A4k k9 — 4

CARTAN A2 HE RS 2 #ARAT
5 i PR e 2 58 B A 22

B} E£20184E12H31H ILEE

Number of share options

I A
Outstanding Lapsed  Cancelled Reclassified Outstanding Adjusted
Date at during during during at exercise
of grant 1.1.2018 the year the year theyear  31.12.2018 price
2018% 2018%
1H1R R L R 12310 g
fHAM AR P34 cabd  EHAM WAGHE i
000 000 000 000
T Fh TR T
Directors f £ 31.5.2017 7470 - - (900) 6570 HKSLO7i#T
Eligible persons GERAL 31.5.2017 30,177 (3,557) (1,396) 900 26,124 HKS$LO7H T
Total At 37,647 (3,557) (1,396) - 32,694

Note 1: During the year, a director was resigned and
appointed as the deputy chief executive officer of
the Company.

MiEEL s 4R —ZHEEFELEZRERALF
HIAT BB -
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550 W R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

BE20184F 1231 H IL4FJE
29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - 29. DAy S Ak o — 4t
continued
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE20174F12H 31 H 1L 5 &
Number of share options
W L
Adjustment
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed due to Outstanding Adjusted
Date at during during during share at exercise
of grant  1.1.2017 the year the year theyear subdivision 31.12.2017 price
20174 20175
1A1H R R R ARG 12A3A
BHAE  WAGHE g e BR¥ HAmAE  WATHE  AWRTER
000 000 000 000 000 000
T4 T T4 T4 T T
(note 2) (note 2)
(k) (k)
Directors EH 31.5.2017 - 2,490 - - 4,980 7470 HKSLO7#TT
Eligible persons FEKRAL 315200 - 11,004 - (945) 20018 30177  HKSLOZ
Total At - 1349 - (945) 25098 37,647
Note 2: Upon the Share Subdivision became effectives, B E2 : AR B A AR A0 AR > B4 e R R AT i
pro-rata adjustments were made to the exercise 18 (f13.21%5 70 70 % 2 1.074 0) M i R
prices from HK$3.21 to HK$1.07 and the number ATAE WG AR RE SO > L) 2 B35 P IE B R
of share options outstanding, so as to give the i D S Ar v A 2B T BT = A AR IR EE 5 A
participants the same proportion of the equity A o

capital as that they were entitled to before the effect
of the Share Subdivision.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

No share options were exercised. The share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme are exercisable
commencing from 31 May 2018 to 30 May 2023
(both dates inclusive) for the first tranche (“Tranche
17) and from 31 May 2019 to 30 May 2024 (both
dates inclusive) for the second tranche (“Tranche 27).
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before 31 May 2017, the date on which the share
options were granted was HK$1.07 after the effect of
the Share Subdivision. For Tranche 1, the fair values
of the share options determined at the dates of grant
using the binomial model for share options granted to
directors of the Company and other eligible persons
were HK$0.37 and HK$0.36, respectively after the
effect of Share Subdivision. For Tranche 2, the fair
values of the share options determined at the dates
of grant using the binomial model for share options
granted to directors of the Company and other eligible
persons were HK$0.42 and HK$0.41, respectively
after the effect of Share Subdivision.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

29. PAIBeAY S Ak B — 4

S 0 P R A T o AR R IR RE S ) T A L
ZIERERE R p s BB — LR RO ([25—HIL)) AT
H201845H31 H £20234F5H30H (4 7
E H) 47 - 155 3t iR ([55 3tk )
Al F20194E5 31 H £20244F5 30 H (42 4§
HREMH) AT o A2\ Bt B 20174
SH3TH (RSB RERZ B H 1) 1 2l Tin 18 4
1.07% 70 Gt X B 7 4l 2 R 2845 ) o i3 —
T F o AR IE R e B T AN R
K H A A A A 2 BERRE A B B 2
W IR 2 “T(EL 43 Tl 50,3795 76 0365 7T (5T
B AR A 2 %) o g M o R
P8 TR R R T AR R A A
EEE N BERCRE R B 1 B R RE AT
{E53 Al 250.4245 76 520,419 70 (G B B PR A0
2R o
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - 29. PLIB By 32 A 3k o —

continued

The following assumptions were used to calculate the

fair values of the share options:

VAR 7% st S8 B S M 2 ST (L T o ) 2 Bt

Tranche 1 Tranche 2
5 I

Grant date 31 May 2017 31 May 2017
i H 20174F5H31H 2017454 31H
Grant date share price (adjusted) HK$1.07 HK$1.07
i B2 B fE (K8 R) 1.07# 7T 1.07# 7T
Exercise Price HK$1.07 HK$1.07
(R 1.07# 7T 1.07# 7T
Expected Life 6 years 7 years
T4 64F 74
Expected Volatility 52% 53%
T R
Dividend Yield 1.87% 1.87%
& 8 %
Risk-free interest Rate 1.00% 1.06%
9 JL M

The valuations are carried out by independent
qualified professional valuers, which are not connected
with the Group. The binomial model has been used
to estimate the fair value of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the independent
qualified professional valuers’ best estimate. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in

the fair value of the options.

The Group recognised the expense of HK$5,520,000
(2017: HK$6,244,000), net of effect on share options
lapsed of HK$1,202,000 (2017: HK$467,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2018 in relation to share
options granted by the Company. During the year,
share options cancelled of HK$503,000 (2017: nil) has

been transferred to retained profits of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries
or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory
contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon their

retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s factory and offices in
the PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The Group are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to

make the specified contributions.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

30. Y8 4k At 2

B Bt et 3

7 £ T AR 9 A 90 5 ) R 0 B < A0 1
8 5 7 I 3K Y B o i 2 A B UK AR A E
(M@fgestdl]) - MPRTEFH - EBHA
AE AR S A A 35 % B £ 1,500 TT HY 4
Ao RS IR AR AR SIS - R BT
H A% B B A # 195%+ H S & £1,500%
Te (M@ AR ]) - B BT 6sSHUR K - &
BB 58 42 1E Ok T AR HE 1 R 15 1009% 19 1 &
o, Al 1 3k

A4 1) o 0 T i B e 1) 4 B 22 e o
R AR B B 58 PR IR AR A > A S 1
RGBS (9 R 5 20 B i 2B PR A
R UARAIRMES > AEEAR
AR AR A B A ME — BEAT 2 A Hh R E K
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HE2018F12H31 H L4
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BT & 5
The Group had the following transactions with related A AR [E] A A A BB B AT LR A

parties during the years:

2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T
Rental expenses paid to entities under 1] A% 2\ W] — 4% #5545 i Y
controlled by a director of the Company B8 S A A 4 B S 6,175 4,722
Key management personnel include directors of the FEERABOFEALRNESRAEB
Company and other senior management of the Group. LAl e AR LR o A AF A LA BORE A B
The remuneration paid or payable during the years are L
as follows:
2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Short-term benefits et A A8 A 8,679 9,842
Post-employment benefits HfE Tk 1% 48 A 72 137
8,751 9,979
The remuneration of key management personnel is FEEHE N B H b A 2 A
determined by management of the Company having R e T 35 M S E o

regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.
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32. OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payables under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of office premises, factory buildings and motor

vehicles, as follows:

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

32. MEBMERYE

A 45 1A 2 AR LA

A AE AR PN T RGN R A A = Y
3~ TR K B I YR EE ) SR A A R A AL K
THAZHT

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$’000

T# oo T T

Within one year —4ER 6,742 4,967
After one year but within five years — R AH AR 8,958 -
15,700 4,967

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2018 included commitment to entities controlled
by a director of the Company amounted to

HK$15,425,000 (2017: HK$2,288,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain office premises, factory buildings
and motor vehicles. Leases are negotiated for terms of

one to five years.

The Group as lessor

The Group had future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases with fixed rents in

respects of premises which would fall due as follows:

R20184E12H31 H i £ 4 fH 4 K ¥ 6 1%
] B AR N ) — 45 T R R R I
15,425,000%5 G (20174F : 2,288,000%5 JG) °

KRB IR A S E s T A=Y
TR B B B T B A A AL > A B i AL 4G
FYPH—EIHF -

A5 M AR 2 AL

7 2 1 0t ) S AR 4R 1] R AL <8 2 S T SR A
HEZ AR REHAEMRE AW

2018 2017

20184F 20174F

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# e T

Within one year —4ERN 183 =

The properties held have committed tenants of a year.

Prfe i 2 W2 — F M ZRGHAEE o
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#E2018F12H31 H IE4FE

33. COMMITMENTS 33. 7R3
As at 31 December 2018, the Group contracted A20184F12 31 H » A4 B 5L A 4 2 K 3
for but not provided in the consolidated BHEEYEZ #E TRAEFAHMERR
financial statements amounting to approximately A B R A 0 A 40 N IR 546,515,000
RMB46,515,000 or equivalents to approximately JC 3 A & R £152,950,000% o0 2 A R
HK$52,950,000 and RMB288,094,000 or 288,094,000 7T 2 A H £327,946,000% JT
equivalent to HK$327,946,000 (31 December (20174F12H31H + AR ¥46,581,0007C 5 AH
2017: RMB46,581,000 or equivalents to 455,896,000 7T & A R #301,650,0007C
HK$55,896,000 and RMB301,650,000 or equivalent o A0 A 381,400,000 76) °

to HK$381,400,000) in respect of constructions
works for properties for own use and properties under

development for sale, respectively.

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. & I
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets TR AR R AR 4 E R B E BRI T ERAT
of the Group were pledged to banks to secure credit 1B 5y A 45 W 25 AR 2 W5 1R

facilities granted to the Group:

2018 2017

20184 20174F

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T T

Property, plant and equipment Y3 - ks B ek A 127,384 -
Prepaid lease payments TE AT FH & IH 15,179 -
Investment properties g7/ 3 9,563 =
152,126 -
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35.

OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are
limited liability companies, at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017 are as follows:

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

A 2 i) W )R 2 i) i

201841231 H K20174E12H31H » &4
) B BRI (34 4 A BR S W) BE I 8 AN
T ¢

Proportion of

Place of nominal value
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid of issued capital/
registration/ share capital/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
it ML/ CHRIRAENA/ AR HRHCRGTRA/
(i Pk i/ B it It R 0 Bk a1 B FEEH
2018 2017 Directly Indirectly
2018% 20174 it Wi
2018 2017 2018 2017
0185 2017 20188 20175
% % % %

Perfect Group International Hong Kon Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Designing, manufacturing
Holdings (HK) ﬂa"ﬁg HK$10,000,001 HKS$10,000,001 and exporting of fine
Limited L Tk jewellery

(REEMERER (B 10,000,001 76 10,000,001 wat » R R
HRAHA th AR E

Perfect Group China Holding Hong Kon Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
(HK) Limited ME HK$10,000 HK$10,000 BEHER

ik T
10,000 7% 10,000% 1T

Perfect Group China Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
Investment (HK) Limited Fik HK$10,000 HK$10,000 BRRER

ik LTk
10,0008 70 10,0008 72
BRI BT PRC Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 70 70 Property development
AREH i US$30,000,000 US$30,000,000 % ;
ik T
30,000,000 72 30,000,000 ¢
REKE (WE) ARAH PRC Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Retailing of fine jewellery
i US$10,000,000 US$10,000,000 FERHRH
ik T
10,000,0003% 7¢ 10,000,000

L 7 R B A PRC Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 70 70 Property management

(NG i RMB500,000 RMB500,000 eS¢
Tk Tk
A B Hs00,0007¢ N B H500,00070

Perfect Group International BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - - Investment holding
Holdings Limited ERELHR US$10,000 US$$10,000 fEER

(R MR PR A R 1 T

10,0005 7 10,0003 16
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#ZE20184F 1231 H IL4FJE
35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. 72 v BB 4 v 9 — 4
OF THE COMPANY - continued
Proportion of
Place of nominal value
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid of issued capital/
registration/ share capital/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
w ML/ CHTREENA/ AR B d DB AT A/
WA ] 4 it/ B kIt A2 s R A b B FEEH
2018 2017 Directly Indirectly
20184 0174 HH#% i

2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 2017F 201845 20174
% % % %

Perfect Group China BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
Holding Limited ERELHE US$10,000 US$10,000 BEsR
Kk L
10,000% 75 10,000% 7
Perfect Group China BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited ERRLHE US$10,000 US$10,000 B R
Kl i
10,0005 10,0005 TG
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Dubai Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Logistics and marketing
DMCC ik AED50,000 AED50,000 activities
I 50,000 H 50,000 Wi it 4
i kg HRES)
The table below shown details of non-wholly owned NREASANEE S ERIEZE KR 2
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- FEEEME AT :

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests
registration/  and voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary operations  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
REMARSL/REM T b B I3 B 2 I M
VB 2 2 REWE  WHEGRETEELA A () F it I It BE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

20184 20174 20184 20174F 20184 20174
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T

BERAEREELHBERAA PRC 30% 30% 16,302 (768) 85,075 72,134
and its subsidiary
SRR B TR i B A R A R LI A A G|
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BE2018F12H31 H IE4FE
35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. 7 ] BB 2 W) RE N — 4
OF THE COMPANY - continued
Summarised financial information, which is prepared A TR A 1 A K G R IR i 2 R
in accordance with HKFRSs, in respect of the Group’s NF Z BBE R (AR1E TS U B Sy e
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling 4R a) WSS s T o LT B & B
interests is set out below. The summarised financial R i Y A [ S 32 B i 2 A -
information below represents amounts before
elimination of intragroup transactions.
2018 2017
20184F 20174F
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T
Current assets ) 591,490 204,701
Non-current assets IE Wi B A = 153,913 41,788
Current liabilities I B A 1 (320,677) (6,041)
Non-current liabilities FENL B A 1 (141,143) <
Total equity HE £ M AR 283,583 240,448
Income e A 209,392 226
Expenses Bl 3¢ (155,052) (2,787)
Profit (loss) for the year AR T s A (5 48) 54,340 (2,561)
Total comprehensive income for the year A AT B 4 TR A AR 42,573 7,824
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating s B AT A
activities S/ DREE ] 138,829 (55,441)
Net cash outflow from investing activities P& 5 B I 4 0 T AR (115,257) (175,916)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BilE 75 B 3 A A B AR 136,782 232,624
Net cash inflow HEmAFE 160,354 k2671

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ELAT IF 2 e 4 2 B R - -
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#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36. LG B Pr A A B 8 2 Bk
ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group liabilities R FEI AN 4L [ R G E) AR A A
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising o MEEHNELAZABEES SR ED
from financing activities are those for which cash flows o AR B 4 A A AN SE A A BB R AR
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the R A RE IR B SR E 2 Al e

Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash

flows from financing activities.

Non-
Interest  controlling Bank Dividend
payable interest loans payable Total
REA AR JefeibhEs  SATER EARE At

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T#T T#T T#x T#T Ti#n

At 1 January 2017 R20174F1H1H L = 2,365 = 2,365
Financing cash flow (note) il ¥ B < i & (P 5E) (1,005) 69,787 23,215 (27,000) 64,997
Dividend declared HIREE - - - 27,000 27,000
Interest accrued JE =T F] B 1,005 = = = 1,005
Share of total comprehensive JRE A A 4F 2 4 T
income for the year I 25 A8 ZE = 2,347 = = 2,347
At 31 December 2017 "20174F12H31H = 72,134 25,580 = 97,714
Financing cash flow (note) fil & 37 4 i & (B %) (11,673) 169 136,857 (27,000) 98,353
Dividend declared EHEIRKE - - - 27,000 27,000
Interest accrued JE &1 1] L 11,673 - - = 11,673
Share of total JRE A A 4
comprehensive 4 TH] U 4 AR RH
income for the year = 12,772 = = 12,772
Effect of foreign exchange [ %% 5 Hj) 2 5 %5
rate changes - - (5,426) = (5,426)
At 31 December 2018 72018412 H31H = 85,075 157,011 — 242,086
Note: The cash flow represent the proceeds from addition/ Mgk . BlEREREGHSRERZ B M
repayment of bank loans, interest paid, dividend paid EMBATER - CAAE EHHEEE&?F
and contribution from non-controlling shareholder in 2 I I TR 2 i A4 R

the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged over the

years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share
capital, share premium, retained profits and other
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

Management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new shares issue as well as the

raising of bank loans.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

37. ¥ W Be B

ARSI SO LU B R

AT W5 0 8 75 3 6
5 AT S ALK ot 535108
T B o

A 1 14 A S A I A A B
ALK > BLAR &R TB R B R RO A~ i
7Y 1~ DR B Vi A1) B LAt £ 44 -

A5 I T o R AR R AR o AR
% AR AR A BUE AR (19 AR B LR
B AR IR AT B, - BEAT B R SR AR AT
B DAT-7 H A A S
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#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38.

Details of the significant accounting policies
and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect
of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities

are disclosed in note 3.

Categories of financial instruments

M T H

MEBMBEELMBEARRHNERS
FHECR X7 (AR R AR e RHEIEE I
HERBUCA TN BH SRy L) 564 > R B RE3 N4

48 T H

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T
Financial assets W5 & e
Financial assets at amortised cost o 8 6 R AS A1) R 2 BA S 324,432 -
Loans and receivables B B R T
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BB L KB EEEY) - 148,240
Financial liabilities %5 2 1%
Amortised cost T4 8 LA 170,640 54,719

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
deposits, trade and other payables and bank loans.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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HE2018F12H31 H 1L
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. W T H — &
— continued
Financial risk management objectives and Wb 5 D e 4 R B e SR —
policies — continued
Currency risk & I
The Group has limited currency exposure as the B A 74 A (5] K 0 Wi 2 DA A B 4 B B 9 T
majority of the revenue were denominated in Al B W > TR A B T T S A L B
functional currency of the relevant group entities. AR o A IR - AR B LUSMNERHER &
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency W M B BR T (E #R A0 R
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting date are as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T
Assets j2 g
HKS$ ESIn 27,372 27,358
RMB NG 218 7,892
Dirham H 7 4 1,296 5,193
Liabilities =K
HKS$ W5 TT 233 476
The Group mainly exposes to foreign currency of A 2 ] B 268 75 3 B0 T P AL R 4 TR R DA O i
RMB, HK$ and Dirham which are arising from FHRL Y B R B R AR T R A
relevant group entities’ foreign currency denominated ROWE - R T Mo B Y B R R o SR - HE
monetary assets and liabilities for the Group’s TC B A 7 4k B 4 TR R Y 2 e B
operating activities. HK$ and Dirham, however, are S S TS e A N N
pegged to the functional currency of respective group FIGURIE T o AL AR A AR
entities, hence the Group’s exposure to currency risk 1Y W TR B o T NI AN K o TR I R A
is not significant and no sensitivity analysis has been A bR B W T Bk ) R E A AT o

presented. No sensitivity analysis for the currency risk
of RMB is prepared as the directors of the Company
consider the net impact of such foreign currency risk is

insignificant.
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#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. W T H — &

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly interest-bearing
bank balances and bank loans (see note 25 for details)
at variable interest rates. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management will consider hedging significant interest

rate risk should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation on LIBOR arising
from the Group’s United States dollar denominated

borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the year. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the year were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease
in interest rates on bank loans and a 10 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on bank balance are
used which represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing bank balances had
been 10 basis points and interest rates on interest
bearing bank loans had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all of other variables were held constant,
the profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
would have approximately decreased/increased
by HK$1,093,000 (2017: decreased/increased by
HK$154,000).
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Given the long-term
relationships with its customers and the financial
position of these customers, management considers
that the credit risk associated with balances due from
wholesale customers is low. In addition, management
considers the customers’ credit history, settlement
patterns, subsequent settlements and aging analysis
of trade receivables in determining the allowance for
doubtful debts and ensures that adequate allowance for
doubtful debts are made for irrecoverable amount. In
this regard, the directors of the Group consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in trade receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such

amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

38. BH# T — &

S 255 J B A B B % SR — A

{5 80 B K% ik (L AT A

i 3B 40 75 R RE R 45 4 R B AT IS A9 B4 > H
A S B AL A J e R T R Y e R A R
B % 5% % B T i 6 A B AR DL 1A 19 L 7 A B
W{E o & T FE RS SRR o A< A
J& O HEAE B ER > B SRR fE
BHAZ XA R > MR RRERETE)
DAIE i fRUH - SR AR IIBLE S R AL
B BHAR S % 2 R 5 B B AR DL B R
o A R R AL 3 2 5 B A5 R B0 L R AR
& - Besh > EHEEBEF E Sk - H|
753~ AR 45 51 DL % B 5 IR WSk L i
4 73 A i 5 R R > I AR 2 A AT i [
U LR IR - Bt > AEMES
8 2o T R 9 R A 4R B 9 15 4 LRy

A A B 7 B 7 MG WA VL e O A v £ R
B o A B R B O3 M 22 4 A T

B SRAT 5 BR A7 O (5 B R A i SRAT > [k
SRAT &5 B B 5 B Fax B A -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. W T H — &

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment
— continued

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision

for trade receivables.

Management assessed the expected loss on trade
receivables individually by estimation based on
historical credit loss experience, general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate
and an assessment of both the current as well as the

forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

In addition, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that there has no default occurred for trade
receivables past due 90 days or more and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable due to long term/
on-going relationship and good repayment record from

these customers.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers because these customers consist of a
large number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The Group’s trade receivables
are grouped under a provision matrix based on
shared credit risk characteristics by reference to past
default experience and current past due exposure of
the debtor. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade
receivables which are assessed collectively based on

provision matrix during the year (not credit-impaired).
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

38. WH# T H — 4
0 L B 45 BE H B R BUR — 4

{5 50 Ja\ By b ok B A A1l — 78

— continued

Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
MR AL CPRIEEE s 488 8¢ 5 i TE ¥ £
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T TH#TT T

Trade receivables & 5 e 3Kk JE
0 — 90 days past due HHA0 — 90K 87,564 0.01% (5) 87,559
91 — 180 days past due #91 - 180K 14,492 0.08% (12) 14,480
Over 180 days past due i HA A 180 K 3,782 25.22% (954) 2,828
105,838 (971) 104,867

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
management of the Group to assess both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management of the Group to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated.

il s 4R 3 T3 2R R (RS A TR 4 S0 ) R
BT A& A R A5 > WAE TN %
A B S5 17 AT HOAT B R R R R o A
A [ A7 L o 1) 5% 56 T W 1 SR BTG i
SR ER UL L R T5 18] o A S A L A
afaz Al > LARER AR E B A M B SR D
HEF T -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment
— continued

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach.

38. WA L H — &

St 755 B B B H R % SR — A

{5 B Ja gy b ok (L AT A1l — 7

AR AR AL vk e D S B W T Y
MG E RS -

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
(ER=Y i (CREY 7]
(A5 B wE) (5 BB AE) HaE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T
As at 31 December 2017 AR W & 5t 253958

under HKAS 39 42017412731 H L 887 887
Adjustment upon application of JRE R 5 1 P s R o )

HKFRS 9 FOREAR 2 g B 148 B 148
As at 1 January 2018 — as restated ~ JA20184F1 5 1 H— £ & 51 148 887 1,035
Impairment losses recognised T e 58 (B s 48 823 - 823
As at 31 December 2018 R2018412 31 H 971 887 1,858

The trade receivables that are credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually. The loss allowance amount of
the credit impaired trade receivables is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows with the
consideration of expected future credit losses.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over
three years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

194 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 42 [H] |5 /5422 11 A7 BR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment
— continued

In determining the ECL for other receivables and
deposits, management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of deposits and other receivables
based on the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate, for example, the
Group has considered the consistently low historical
default rate in connection with payments, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding other receivables and deposits are

insignificant.

Management of the Group considers the bank balances
that are deposited with the financial institutions with
high credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets.
Management of the Group considers the bank balances
are short-term in nature and the probability of default
is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers,
and accordingly, loss allowance was considered as

insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group has built a liquidity risk
management framework for managing the Group’s
short and medium-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and
by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual
cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial

liabilities.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

38. BH# T — &

S 255 L B A B R R SR — A

{5 50 Ja\ By b ok B A A1l — 78

7o 7 FLA B SCRR I 4% < 2 TR s 4R
M5 - AR L AR R AR ek [
HITWE P OB (F 0 ) 38 42 5 R Al Wi B
Z T i PR AEE AT A S0 R A B A A
Bl > A5 B C 2% b LA 3K B 45 A Ol 11K 2
AT A 3 S0 A A A 4 R e A i ) L At
JE WS R S 4 4 2 18 A AR SRRl AN K

A4 [ L R 5 A O R BT 8 2
PR 2 SRATT 45 B o A £ B I B P 5 S - AR
B A T T 2 SRATT A R SR I > T
)] REVEIA 5 BT AR B AT N 2R B R 22
WA EE o P 1R R A A M

B & & A

A SR 8 B TS O S T ) B < B B
2 DEMASEENTENE S RRE &S
R OR o A S F A o HUTS SR AT Rl B % R A
S 5 T ) o R B e B B R B
HAREDL - DL BRI ) A B o

2018 Annual Report 4EE#Hi# 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
550 W R B

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

#HE20184F12H31 H IEFRE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The

table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

38. WA#5 I — 4

St 5 Dl B A B H AR R BOR —

B A

A e
B — 78

=

R EES A G [ B AR R A

BARR o R RMRRA LR W R

K f B

HOsEE - DU I8 B R R R B
o FRAKGHEMNERASRERE

Over 1 year
Weighted On demand but not Total
average or lessthan  more than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2years  cash flows amount
TR @B AN B
o i gk A AR BHERE
FIM R —ENER WA N R ok G 1h fF
% HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#x Tl T#x Ti#n
Financial liabilities W
At 31 December 2018 JA2018412H31H
Trade and other B T B HoAth
payables JE At R I - 13,629 - 13,629 13,629
Bank loans RATH K 1.98 16,735 157,911 174,646 157,011
30,364 157,911 188,275 170,640
At 31 December 2017 42017412/ 31H
Trade and other B 5 T HoAth
payables JRE A 3K I - 29,139 - 29,139 29,139
Bank loans SRAT B 1.13 25,580 - 25,580 25,580
54,719 = 54,719 54,719
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

— continued

Financial risk management objectives and
g
policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2018, the aggregate carrying amounts
of these bank loans amounted to HK$16,735,000
(2017: HK$25,580,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the borrower and the bank will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors of the Company believe that such
bank loans will be repaid within one year after the
end of the reporting period in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the undiscounted cash
outflows amounted to HK$16,905,000 (2017:
HK$25,870,000) at 31 December 2018.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values at the end of

each reporting period.

&5 I B IR R B
For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H 1L

38. BH# T — &

S 255 J B A B B % SR — A

i B A A F — 4

Bt -

LA BB 4R > LR A ZE R R
PR SR B BRAT B R A T2 4% ok Bl
oD A — A A 2R ) I B ] SR AT o 22018
F12H31H » 57 5 SR AT B 5Kk H A8 A A
16,735,000% JC (20174 : 25,580,000
JG) o wh B AL E ) A BRI > AR W) 3
G A 15 O K SRAT AT BE G 47 6 K
5 HE DA 2K B IR K o AR A RIS F AR o
5% 55 SRAT B ORT 4 8 I U 1) 7
TE B FH R IR IR — RN ER o E
fRf > A20184F12 H 31 H Y A 15 B 31 4 00
i £516,905,000% 76 (20174F : 25,870,000
WI0) ©

B B T 0 2

VB e P 5 R A P (AR U R PR A
Y R B A X 1% 1 B B 4 A R 0 AT B E o

AATERRE MR R 4
T 9 P U 7 AT 1 5 7
BRI A TR -
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B B Y5 WA B i

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12H31 H IE4FFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

39. 7 2% W) B 5IR Bl

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
20184 20174F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F# T T

Non-current asset IF i B G
Interest in subsidiaries B8 A F ] B RE £5 331,681 318,759

Current assets E G E
Other receivables and prepayments H Al 8 SR T R T A R OIE 393 254
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFRE Az o Jag§ 2 ) K T 98,891 69,118
Bank balances SRAT 45 Bk 1,237 13,857
100,521 83,229
Current liabilities i p=Ki

Accruals and other payables JRE it B L Ath 8 £+f 3 H 601 845
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE AT Bf Je 2 W] 3k JA - 156
601 1,001
Net current assets LB VAR 99,920 82,228
Total assets less current liabilities B AVE B E) & 431,601 400,987

Share capital and reserves A T fith A
Share capital AR 4,500 4,500
Reserves (note) it (B ) 427,101 396,487
431,601 400,987

198 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited {5 42 ¥ 5 /5422 11 A BR 2 )



39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 W R

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE20184F12H31 H IEFEE

39. A2 vl i 45K OL % — &

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

— continued
Note: Fif 5
Movement of reserves it i 5 B)
Share
Share Special option Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
i 1 4 16 ReRIGRf TN G ik B i A At
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$°000
Ti#T T TiT Tt T

At 1 January 2017 #20174F1H 1R 93,840 278,804 = 26,519 399,163
Total comprehensive income EN RN E

for the year Gk = = = 18,080 18,080
Dividend (note 12) B (HfzE12) — = - (27,000) (27,000)
Recognition of equity-settled R DA 4 45 B L

share-based payment F A A #IE

(note 29) (HH7E29) = - 6,711 - 6,711
Share options lapsed (note 29) i S B 2 3t (fF3E29) - - (467) = (467)
At 31 December 2017 R20174E12H31 B 93,840 278,804 6,244 17,599 396,487
Total comprehensive income A 1Ry 4 T 4 5

for the year = = = 52,094 52,094
Dividend (note 12) fiE S (FfaE12) - - x| (27,000) (27,000)
Recognition of equity-settled bR A HEE 25 45 B D

share-based payment A S At #K0E

(note 29) (HH7E29) - - 6,722 B 6,722
Share options lapsed (note 29) il P E 2 (B 3E29) = = (1,202) = (1,202)
Share option cancelled and transfer [ 5 ffE 8 S 5

to retained profits ZERE A = = (503) 503 -
At 31 December 2018 #20184F 1231 H 93,840 278,804 11,261 43,196 427,101
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Financial Summary

bk 5 ok 22

The following is a summary of the published results and AR A S A A 1 TR B AR E B AR
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial DL BB T AR 22 o B B 201448 10 A B RS
years. The financial information for the years ended 31 g% B AL R H 1 £20154E12 7 22 H IR IR AR o
December 2014 is extracted from the prospectus of the

Company dated 22 December 2015.

For the years ended 31 December
BWEI12H31H L4
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184F 20174F 2016%F 20154F 20144F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
Tt THs T T Hs T T #6T0 T #6T0

Revenue I B 522,005 352,043 322,423 458,306 516,154
Gross profit E A 167,985 110,184 88,944 132,077 150,505
Profit for the year 1A i A 71,572 48,075 34,699 56,460 90,439

As at 31 December
i*12H31H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184F 20174 20164F 20154 20144F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
T8 T Tt Tt T #500

Total assets R AEE 1,064,020 586,802 486,654 354,588 553,822
Total liabilities BEAH 505,685 65,854 73714 339,913 192,535
Net assets A 558,335 520,948 412,940 14,675 361,287
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